Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.532.5100 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

497th Transportation Technical Committee Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments THURSDAY, May 9, 2019 – 10:00 a.m. Civic Center Conference Room (Skyway Level) **AGENDA**

2.	Approve the Agenda				Action Item
3.	Consider Minutes of the April 11, 2019 TTC N	leet	ing		Action Item
4.	Public Input Opportunity				Public Input
5.	2019-2022 TIP Amendment #3				Action Item
	a. Open Public Meeting				
	b. Close Public Meeting				
6.	FTA Section 5339/5310 ND Transit Application	ons			Action Item
7.	FM Diversion Recreation Plan Consultant Se	lect	ion		Action Item
8.	Moorhead 12 th Avenue South Corridor Stud	y Fir	nal Report		Action Item
9.	Prepare for 2020 Budget and Consider Proje	ectl	Needs List & Prioriti	ization	Action Item
10	. 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Con	rac	t Extension		Action Item
11	. FM Bikeways Map App			Info	rmation Item
12	. Dynamic Traffic Assignment Workshop			Info	rmation Item
13	. Agency Updates			Dis	cussion Item
	a. City of Fargo	e.	City of Horace		
	b. City of Moorhead	f.	Cass County		
	c. City ot West Fargo	g.	Clay County		

d. City of Dilworth

Call to Order and Introductions

- 2. Additional Business
- 3. Adjourn

1

- y. Clay County
- h. Other Member Jurisdictions

Information Item

REMINDER: The next TTC meeting is scheduled for Thursday, June 13, 2019 in the Civic

Center Conference Room (formerly known as the River Room) at 10:00 a.m.

Red Action Items require roll call votes.

NOTE: Full Agenda packets can be found on the Metro COG Web Site at http://www.fmmetrocog.org - Committees

Metro COG is committed to ensuring all individuals, regardless of race, color, sex, age, national origin, disability/handicap, sexual orientation, and/or income status have access to Metro COG's programs and services. Meeting facilities will be accessible to mobility impaired individuals. Metro COG will make a good faith effort to accommodate requests for translation services for meeting proceedings and related materials. Please contact Savanna Leach, Metro COG Executive Assistant, at 701-532-5100 at least five days in advance of the meeting if any special accommodations are required for any member of the public to be able to participate in the meeting.

PLANNING ORGANIZATION SERVING Fargo, West Fargo, Horace, Cass County, North Dakota and Moorhead, Dilworth, Clay County, Minnesota

Attachment 1

496th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Transportation Technical Committee Thursday, April 11, 2019 – 10:00 am Metro COG Conference Room

Members Pre	sent:	
Jonathan	Atkins	City of Moorhead Traffic Engineering
Brenda	Derrig	City of Fargo Engineering (alternate for Aaron Nelson)
Cindy	Gray	Metro COG
Jeremy	Gorden	City of Fargo Transportation Engineering
Robin	Huston	City of Moorhead Planning
Michael	Johnson	NDDOT – Local Government Division
Kim	Lipetsky	Fargo Cass Public Health
Matt	Peterson	MATBUS (alternate for Julie Bommelman)
Russ	Sahr	City of Horace Planning
Jordan	Smith	MATBUS (alternate for Lori Van Beek)
Tom	Soucy	Cass County Highway (alternate for David Overbo)
Stan	Thurlow	City of Dilworth Planning
Barrett	Voigt	Cass County Planning
Members Ab	sent:	
Jason	Benson	Cass County Highway Engineering
Julie	Bommelman	City of Fargo, MATBUS
Chris	Brungardt	West Fargo Public Works
Hali	Durand	Clay County Planning
Kristie	Leshovsky	City of Moorhead Planning/Zoning
David	Overbo	Clay County Engineering
Aaron	Nelson	Fargo City Planning
Mary	Safgren	MnDOT – District 4
Tim	Solberg	City of West Fargo Planning
Brit	Stevens	NDSU – Transportation Manager
Lori	Van Beek	City of Moorhead, MATBUS
Mark	Wolter	Freight Representative, Midnite Express
Others Prese	nt:	
Adam	Altenburg	Metro COG
Jason	Carbee	HDR
Luke	Champa	Metro COG
James	Dahlman	Interstate Engineering/Horace Engineer
Dan	Farnsworth	Metro COG
Ryan	Frolek	Moore Engineering Inc
Nathan	Gannon	MnDOT
Brandyn	Heck	Metro COG
Matt	Huettl	HDR
Annemarie	Kettler	Fargo Cass Public Health
Matt	Kinsella	Apex Engineering Group
Savanna	Leach	Metro COG
Michael	Maddox	Metro COG
Jim	Mertz	Bolton & Menk
Anna	Pierce	Metro COG
Cole	Swingen	MATBUS/ City of Fargo

1. CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 am, on April 11, 2019 by Chair Gray. A quorum was present.

2. Approve the 496th TTC Meeting Agenda

Chair Gray asked if there were any questions or changes to the 496th TTC Meeting Agenda.

Motion: Approve the 496th TTC Meeting Agenda. Mr. Smith moved, seconded by Mr. Soucy *MOTION*, PASSED. 13-0 Motion carried unanimously.

3. APPROVE March 14, 2019 TTC MEETING MINUTES

Chair Gray asked if there were any questions or changes to the March 14, 2019 TTC Meeting Minutes.

Motion: Approve the March 14, 2019 TTC Minutes. Mr. Sahr moved, seconded by Mr. Atkins MOTION, PASSED. 13-0 Motion carried unanimously.

4. Public Comment Opportunity

No public comments were made or received.

No MOTION

5. 2018 Title VI Annual Report

Mr. Altenburg presented the 2018 Title VI Annual Report.

Motion: Recommend Policy Board Approval of the 2018 Title VI Report Mr. Gorden moved, seconded by Ms. Huston MOTION, PASSED. 13-0 Motion carried unanimously.

6. Future Project Solicitation Results/Reminders Ms. Gray provided an update on the Future Project Solicitation request from the March TTC meeting.

7. Additional Business

No additional business.

8. Adjourn The 496th Regular Meeting of the TTC was adjourned on April 11 at 10:11 a.m.

THE NEXT FM METRO COG TRANSPORTATION TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING WILL BE HELD May 9, 2019, 10:00 A.M. AT THE RIVER ROOM, FARGO CIVIC CENTER OFFICES (207 4TH STREET NORTH).

Respectfully Submitted,

Savanna Leach Executive Secretary

496th Meeting of the FM Metro COG Transportation Technical Committee – page 2 Thursday, April 11, 2019

Agenda Item 5

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.232.3242 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

To:Transportation Technical CommitteeFrom:Luke ChampaDate:05/03/2019Re:2019-2022 Transportation Amendment #3

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) will hold a public meeting at the Fargo Civic Center Offices, Suite A – River Room, 207 4th Street N. in Fargo, North Dakota on Thursday, May 9, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. to consider public comments regarding a proposed amendment to the 2019-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for the FM Metropolitan Area. The proposed amendment to the 2019-2022 TIP is as follows:

- 1. **Modification of Project 8190033**: MnDOT weigh-in-motion scale at I-94 weigh station. Year moved from 2019 to 2020, project total decreased to \$620,000, and funding changed to include only State funds.
- 2. Addition of Project 4193002: Fargo Transit bus replacement for three fixed-route buses, replacing unit 1174, 1175, and 1176. The total project cost is \$1,202,313 of which \$961,851 is funded by Federal Section 5339 funds, and \$240,462 through local matching funds.
- 3. **Modification of Project 917020**: NDDOT Main Avenue reconstruction project. Cost and funding increased and the project was split into two phases:

917020a: Main Avenue Phase 1, project cost is \$12,309,292 of which \$7,332,764 is funded by Federal Surface Transportation Block Grant Program funds, \$821,799 by the State, and \$4,154,729 through local matching funds.

917020b: Main Avenue Phase 2, project cost is \$14,690,000 of which \$9,484,996 is funded by Federal STBGP funds, \$1,063,004 by the State, and \$4,142,000 through local matching funds

Requested Action: Pending public comment, Metro COG requests a favorable recommendation to the Policy Board for approval of proposed Amendment #3 to the 2019-2022 TIP.

Agenda Item 5, Attachment 1

	Metro	Project	Project	Length	Projec	ct Limits	Project Description	Improvement Type	e Total Project Fe		eral Other			
Lead Agency	COG ID	Year	Location		То	From			Cost	Revenue	Revenue	F	Revenue	
Amendment #3														
MnDOT	8190033 1480-177	2020	I-94		at weigh st	tation	Install mainline (EB/WB) weigh-in-motion scale at RP 13.102 (funded by district c) *Early let/late award (ELLA)	Rehabilitation	\$ 620,	000	State	\$	620,000	
Fargo Transit	4193002	2019	Transit				Bus Replacement for 3 fixed-route buses (replaces unit 1174, 1175, and 1176)	Transit Capital	\$ 1,202,	313 FTA 5339	Local	\$ \$	961,851 240,462	
NDDOT	917020a	2019	Main Ave	0.4	2nd St	Broadway	Reconstruct Main Ave, replacement of underground utilities *Utility replacement included in cost	Reconstruction	\$ 12,309,	292 STBGP-R	State Local	\$ \$ \$	7,332,764 821,799 4,154,729	
NDDOT	917020b	2019	Main Ave	0.5	Broadway	University	Reconstruct Main Ave, replacement of underground utilities *Utility replacement included in cost ¹ Local match ² Additional local match	Reconstruction	\$ 14,690,	000 STBGP-R	State Local ¹ Local ²	\$ \$ \$	9,484,996 1,063,004 1,172,000 2,970,000	

Agenda Item 6

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.532.5100 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

To: TTC Members
From: Dan Farnsworth, Transportation Planner
Date: May 3, 2019
Re: FTA Section 5310/5339 ND Transit Grant Application

The North Dakota Department of Transportation (NDDOT) recently solicited applications for annual transit grants under FTA Section 5310 and Section 5339. Section 5310 provides funding for transit projects that improve mobility for the elderly and persons with disabilities while Section 5339 provides funding for transit projects that involve replacement of buses, improvements to bus facilities, and more. Awarded projects are funded with up to 80% Federal funds and a required 20% local match.

All applicants with projects within Metro COG's planning area are required to submit their applications to Metro COG for review and prioritization (if necessary). The only applicant that submitted an application was the City of Fargo.

Below are the FTA Section 5310 and 5339 projects Metro COG has received. The 5310 and 5339 applications will be submitted to NDDOT before the May 23rd, 2018 deadline.

<u>Section 5310 – Urban</u>

- Metro Mobility Manager
 - Total cost: \$66,296 (\$53,036.80 Federal / \$13,259.20 local)
- Replacement of three 14-passenger vehicles
 - Total cost: \$270,000 (\$216,000 Federal / \$54,000 local)

<u>Section 5339 – Urban</u>

- Replacement of one 35-foot fixed route bus
 - o Total cost: \$525,000 (\$420,000 Federal / \$105,000 local)
- Metro Transit Garage lighting improvement
 - Total cost: \$67,000 (\$53,600 Federal / \$13,400 local)
- Diesel exhaust particulate filter cleaner for Metro Transit Garage
 - o Total cost: \$33,500 (\$26,800 Federal / \$6,700 local)
- Farebox system replacement
 - o Total cost: \$1,000,000 (\$800,000 Federal / \$200,000 local)
- Informational kiosks
 - o Total cost: \$97,696 (\$78,156.80 Federal / \$19,539.20 local)
- Two new 14-passenter vehicles
 - o Total cost: \$240,000 (\$192,000 Federal / \$48,000 local)

Requested Action: Recommend approval to the Policy Board of the FTA Section 5310 and 5339 Transit Grant Applications as shown above.

Agenda Item 7

207 4th Street North Suite A (Skyway level) Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.532.5100 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

- To: Transportation Technical Committee
- From: Adam Altenburg, AICP
- Date: May 2, 2019

Re: Fargo-Moorhead Diversion Recreation Plan Consultant Selection

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments and the Metro Flood Diversion Authority is seeking professional consultant services to complete the Fargo-Moorhead Diversion Recreation Plan. This plan is intended to provide a framework to help facilitate the development of recreational concepts into the design and construction of the Diversion Project, as well as outline specific recreation investment needs. The plan would also incorporate important non-recreational aspects along the floodway including security and emergency access, native vegetation and riparian habitat management, and integrating visual design aesthetics with important infrastructure elements.

In March, Metro COG's Policy Board approved the RFP to secure a consultant to complete the technical and planning tasks outlined in the scope of work under an approved budget of \$230,000. Metro COG received four (4) proposals prior to the April 22 closing date from the following lead consultants: Bolton & Menk, SRF, Stantec, and WSB. The selection committee is planning to meet with and interview consultants on May 8 to further understand each consultant's technical qualifications, task deliverables, and past project experience.

If a recommendation is made in time for the TTC meeting, Metro COG will provide more information on the consultant selection for the plan as a laydown item, and identify a requested TTC action.

Requested Action: None.

207 4th Street North Suite A (Skyway level) Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.532.5100 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

Agenda Item 8

To:Transportation Technical CommitteeFrom:Adam Altenburg, AICPDate:May 2, 2019Re:Moorhead 12th Avenue South Corridor Study

In April 2018, the City of Moorhead and the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments began the Moorhead 12th Avenue South Corridor Study. The purpose of this study, extending from River Drive to Main Avenue SE, is to evaluate existing and future traffic needs along the corridor, as well as consider bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, transit needs, access management, alternative intersection designs and control options, and other corridor enhancements. It is anticipated that short-term recommendations from the study may be considered as part of a scheduled mill and overlay project programmed for 2020.

Requested Action: Recommend Policy Board approval of the Moorhead 12th Avenue South Corridor Study pending final approval by the Moorhead City Council.

A copy of the Moorhead 12th Avenue South Corridor Study Final Report Draft can be viewed on our website:

http://fmmetrocog.org/projects-rfps/12th-avenue-south-corridor-study

12th Avenue South Corridor Study River Drive to Main Avenue SE

APRIL 2019









12th Avenue South Corridor Study

River Drive to Main Avenue SE Moorhead, Minnesota

Draft Document

Prepared for: Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments City of Moorhead

Prepared By:

Apex Engineering Group Stonebrooke Engineering Flint Group Hanson Design Associates

April 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Introduction	1
1.1 Study Background	1
1.2 Study Location	1
1.3 Intersecting Study: US 10/75 Corridor Study	2
2.0 Summary of Public Involvement	3
2.1 Study Review Committee Meetings	3
2.2 Public Participation Plan	4
2.3 Public Input Meetings	4
2.4 Online Surveys	5
3.0 Existing Conditions	7
3.1 Traffic Operations	7
3.2 Construction History	17
3.3 Land Use	
3.4 Geometry	
3.5 Typical Section	19
3.6 Pavement Condition	20
3.7 Right of Way	20
3.8 Access and Parking	20
3.9 Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities	22
3.10 Lighting	24
3.11 Drainage/Storm Sewer	24
3.12 Utilities	25
3.13 Railroad Crossings	26
3.14 Transit	26
3.15 Trees and Landscaping	28

4.0 Future 2040 No Build Conditions	32
4.1 Future 2040 No Build Conditions	
4.2 Future 2040 No Build Conditions Operational Analysis	
4.3 Future 2040 No Build Conditions Queuing Analysis	35
4.4 Traffic Operations Conclusion	
5.0 Issue Identification and Needs Assessment	40
5.1 Traffic Operations and Roadway Geometrics	40
5.2 Pedestrian and Bicycle Mobility	41
5.3 Transit Facilities	42
5.4 Parking and Access Management	42
5.5 Streetscaping and Trees	43
6.0 Alternative Development and Evaluation	46
6.1 River Drive South to 8 th Street South	46
6.2 8 th Street South to 20 th Street South	49
6.3 20 th Street South to Main Avenue Southeast	52
6.4 Corridor-Wide Improvements	54
7.0 Environmental Documentation	57
7.1 Scope of Environmental Impact Analysis	57
7.2 Natural Resources	57
7.3 Utility Impacts	58
7.4 Section 4(f)	58
7.5 Section 6(f)	59
7.6 Environmental Justice and Social Considerations	59
8.0 Study Recommendations	61
8.1 Summary of Recommendations	61
8.2 Estimated Cost for Recommended Improvement Alternatives	62

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.1	Study Location	1
Figure 3.1	Existing Traffic Volumes	3
Figure 3.2	Zoning Map18	3
Figure 3.3	Access and Parking	1
Figure 3.4	Sidewalks and Bike Lanes	2
Figure 3.5	2018 Pedestrian Volumes	3
Figure 3.5	2018 Pedestrian Volumes	3
Figure 3.6	MATBUS Routes and Ridership/Bike Loading Data	7
Figure 3.7	Existing Tree Location and Conditions (1 of 2))
Figure 3.7	Existing Tree Locations and Conditions (2 of 2)	1
Figure 4.1	2040 Traffic Volumes	3
Figure 5.1	Concordia Master Plan at 12th Avenue South and 8th Street South44	1
Figure 6.1	River Drive to 8th Street47	7
Figure 6.2	8th Street Intersection	3
Figure 6.3	8th Street to 13th Street)
Figure 6.4	14th Street to 20th Street52	1
Figure 6.5	BNSF RR Crossing to Main Avenue53	3
Figure 6.6	Corridor-Wide Landscaping/Streetscaping	5
Figure 6.7	Corridor-Wide Landscaping/Streetscaping	5

LIST OF TABLES

Table 3.1 Intersection Control Delay and Level of Service Definitions	10
Table 3.2 2015 AADT and Capacity Analysis	11
Table 3.3 2018 AM and PM Level of Service and Intersection Delay	12
Table 3.4 2018 AM Queuing Summary	13
Table 3.5 2018 PM Queuing Summary	14
Table 3.6 Intersection Crash Rates 2011-2015	16
Table 3.7 Construction History	17
Table 3.8 Typical Section	19
Table 3.9 Right of Way Width	20
Table 3.10 Existing Tree Condition	29
Table 4.1 2015 and 2040 AADR and Capacity Analysis	32
Table 4.2 2040 No Build AM and PM Intersection Delay and LOS	34
Table 4.3 2040 No Build AM Queuing Summary	36
Table 4.4 2040 No Build PM Queuing Summary	37
Table 6.1 River Drive South to 8th Street South	46
Table 6.2 Segment 2: 8th Street South to 20th Street South	49
Table 6.3 Segment 3: 20th Street South to Main Avenue SE	52
Table 6.4 Corridor-Wide Improvements	54
Table 8.1 Long-Range Improvement Alternative Estimated Costs	62
Table 8.2 Short-Range Improvement Estimated Costs	63

APPENDICES

- Appendix A Study Review Committee Meeting Minutes and Materials
- Appendix B Public Participation Plan
- Appendix C Public Input Meeting Comment Transcripts and Other Materials
- Appendix D Online Survey Summaries
- Appendix E Traffic Analysis Supporting Data
- Appendix F Cost Estimates

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Study Background

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) and the City of Moorhead (City) commissioned a study of the 12th Avenue South corridor between River Drive and Main Avenue SE in Moorhead. The 2014 Metropolitan Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) classifies 12th Avenue South in Moorhead as a major collector west of 8th Street, and as a minor arterial east of 8th Street. The 2014 LRTP also identifies this corridor for a mid-term (2021-2030) Preservation and Rehabilitation project. The City of Moorhead currently has a project programmed for 2020 to construct improvements on 12th Avenue South.

The purpose of this study is to:

- Consider a context-sensitive approach that consider the needs of all transportation system users
- Evaluate the current and future needs along the corridor
- Encourage input from the general public and 12th Avenue South community through several outreach methods
- Identify short-term and long-range improvements that should be considered for future implementation
- Provide a framework for future project implementation and informed decision-making by City leaders

1.2 Study Location

12th Avenue South is a 2-lane undivided roadway that runs east-west with a speed limit of 30 mph throughout the corridor **(see Figure 1.1)**. The corridor has areas of on-street parking and on-street bike lanes. Different land uses exist along the corridor including residential, institutional, industrial and mixed-use. BNSF has five railroad tracks that cross the corridor just east of 20th Street. Key intersections along the corridor include:

- 4th Street
- 5th Street
- 8th Street (US 75)

11th Street14th Street

- 20th Street
- Main Avenue SE
- Figure 1.1 | Study Location Minnesota State University Moorhead 12th Avenue South Study Area Moorhead Moorhead Description Moorhead Description Descrip

12th Avenue South – East of 11th Street



12th Avenue South – West of 11th Street



Railroad Crossing at 20th Street



1.3 Intersecting Study: US 10/75 Corridor Study

Metro COG, the City of Moorhead, and the Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) are conducting a corridor study on US 10/75 which intersects the 12th Avenue South study corridor at the 8th Street (US 75) intersection. The US 10/75 study started approximately three months after the start of the 12th Avenue South study, and as of this writing (May 2019) is still ongoing. The teams for both studies have coordinated their efforts at the 8th Street (US 75) intersection, particularly regarding the future traffic projection and analysis methodologies. The 12th Avenue South study is using Year 2040 for future traffic volume development, while the US 10/75 study is using Year 2045. However, the intent is for the proposed improvements at the 8th Street intersection to be supported by both studies. Preliminary analysis on the US 10/75 study does support the recommended alternative improvements at 8th Street from this study.

8th Street Intersection

12th Avenue South



2.0 SUMMARY OF PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

2.1 Study Review Committee Meetings

A Study Review Committee (SRC) was formed at the beginning of the Study process to provide general guidance on the direction of the study, to assist in identifying issues and reviewing alternatives, to evaluate information prior to public viewing, and to relay information back to other members of their respective agency.

A total of four in-person meetings and one conference call were held with the SRC during the study. In addition, a streetscaping and art meeting was held in December 2018 which was not an official SRC Meeting, but did have several members of the SRC in attendance.

- SRC Meeting #1: May 16, 2018 | Kickoff meeting including study team introductions and initial discussions on issues, needs, traffic analysis process, and the public engagement plan.
- SRC Conference Call: August 20, 2018 | The SRC reviewed and discussed comments on Draft Tech Memo #1 (Existing Conditions), confirmed the future traffic projection methodology, discussed the online survey, and reviewed the plan for the upcoming Public Meeting #1.
- SRC Meeting #2: October 18, 2018 | The SRC debriefed on Public Meeting #1 and reviewed public comments received both at the meeting and through the online survey. Issue identification and needs were verified from the public input, and a discussion was held on alternative development.
- Streetscape and Art Meeting: December 17, 2018 | This meeting was held to review concepts and ideas for streetscaping and street art near Concordia College.
- SRC Meeting #3: March 8, 2019 | The SRC reviewed and discussed comments on Draft Tech Memo #3 (Alternative Development and Evaluation), summarized the coordination that was ongoing with the intersecting study on the US 10/75 corridor, and reviewed the plan for the upcoming Public Meeting #2.
- SRC Meeting #4: April 30, 2019 (tentative) | The SRC reviewed and discussed comments on the Draft Corridor Study Report and finalized arrangements for presentations to boards and councils to obtain approval for the final study report.

Meeting minutes, sign-in sheets, and handouts from the SRC Meetings are included in **Appendix A**. The SRC included participation from the following agencies and individuals:

Metro COG

Adam Altenburg

City of Moorhead Kristie Leshovsky Jonathan Atkins Tom Trowbridge Steve Moore

MATBUS

Lori Van Beek

Concordia College Roger Olson

Apex Engineering Group Matt Kinsella Brent Muscha Stonebrooke Engineering Kate Miner

Flint Group Chris Hagen

Hanson Design Associates Jim Hanson

2.2 Public Participation Plan

The study team developed a Public Participation Plan (PPP) document to guide the public engagement strategies for the 12th Avenue South study. A copy of the full PPP document can be found in **Appendix B**.

The PPP identified the key stakeholders and outlined the various engagement tactics that would be used during the study.

2.3 Public Input Meetings

Two public input meetings were held during the study – one midway through the study and one near the end of the study. Each meeting utilized an open house format with informational handouts and displayed exhibits, as well as a formal presentation. The public meetings were held on the campus of Concordia College, in the Birkeland Lounge at Offutt Concourse. Advertising and notification tactics included the following:

- Posts on Metro COG and the City's websites
- Boost posts on Facebook and on Metro COG and City social media channels
- Posts to Nextdoor neighborhood social network app
- Mailed notices from the City to properties adjoining the corridor
- Print ad in the Clay County Extra newspaper
- Shareable emails and alerts were provided to partners such as Concordia College, Minnesota State University Moorhead (MSUM), MATBUS, MState, and Eventide
- Moorhead Community Access Media (MCAM) also aired an advertisement on community access television

→ Public Input Meeting #1 – September 20, 2018

At the first meeting, the Existing Conditions and Future Conditions traffic analyses were presented. The goal was to hear from the public regarding what they viewed as the key issues and needs along the corridor. Approximately 25 members of the public attended the meeting. Meeting materials and a transcript of comments received during and after the meeting can be found in **Appendix C**.

→ Public Input Meeting #2 – March 19, 2019

At the second meeting, the study issues and needs and proposed alternatives were presented. The results of the online survey were also summarized. The goal was to reflect back what the study team heard during the first round of comment and feedback, and to receive feedback on whether the proposed alternatives were in alignment with the public sentiment. Approximately 40 members of the public attended the meeting. Meeting materials and a transcript of comments received during and after the meeting can be found in **Appendix C.**



2.4 Online Surveys

Two online surveys were available to the public during the course of the study. The surveys were hosted on the SurveyMonkey platform and were accessible from weblinks on both the Metro COG and City of Moorhead websites.

→ Online Survey #1

Online Survey #1 was available from July 3 – October 18, 2018, coinciding with the Issue Identification phase of the study. 172 survey responses were received. The survey consisted of 10 general questions about how the respondent used 12th Avenue South, what they saw as the key issues on the corridor, and what type of improvements they would be in favor of.

With that many responses being received, the comments received spanned across a large category of issues and needs. Overall, the most common topics commented on by respondents were:

- Pavement Condition
- Pedestrian/Bicycle Connectivity and Safety
- Railroad Crossing Improvement at 20th Street
- Transit Facilities (benches, shelters)
- Trees and Streetscaping

A complete summary of the survey questions and responses can be found in Appendix D.

→ Online Survey #2

Online Survey #1 was available from March 20 – April 22, 2019, coinciding with the Alternative Development and Evaluation phase of the study. xx survey responses were received. The survey consisted of 16 questions asking the respondent to rate the various proposed improvement alternatives on a scale of one to five stars. A complete summary of the survey questions and responses can be found in **Appendix D**.





3.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS

3.1 Traffic Operations

This section is intended to summarize the description of data collection, methodologies for modeling the corridor, as well as operational, queuing, and safety analysis for the Existing Conditions. The following nine intersections were identified and evaluated along the corridor:

- 1. Elm Street
- 4th Street South
 5th Street South
- 8th Street South
 11th Street South
- 6. 14th Street South
- 7. 17th Street South
- 8. 20th Street South
- 9. Main Avenue SE

Supporting data for the traffic analysis can be found in Appendix E.

3.1.1 DATA COLLECTION

In an effort to obtain all the data along the 12th Avenue S corridor necessary for both analyzing existing and proposed conditions, 12-hour turning movement counts for the nine intersections were collected in April 2018. The 2017 Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) volumes are required for safety analysis and were collected from MnDOT GIS layers.

Figure 3.1 displays the existing AM and PM turning movement counts and lane configurations of each intersection along the study corridor.

Crash data was collected for the last full 5-year period for which data was fully available, 2011-2015 from the Minnesota Crash Mapping Analysis Tool (MCMAT) database.



8th Street Intersection

12TH AVENUE S CORRIDOR STUDY | 7



Figure 3.1 | Existing Traffic Volumes

3.1.2 MODEL SET UP

An existing conditions traffic model in Synchro was created, which included in-place geometry such as number of thru lanes and turn lanes, storage lengths for turn lanes, link distances, speed limits, and existing signal timing parameters. Separate files were created for the AM Existing Conditions and PM Existing Conditions, using the turning movement counts collected. Following creation of the models in Synchro, the files were output to SimTraffic for further analysis.

SimTraffic is a microsimulation software package that is the companion to Synchro. SimTraffic uses network seeding and microsimulation to predict and analyze traffic operations. Analysis results are generally based on actual observations of the modeled conditions, not on calculated values based on Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) formulas.

Results of the analysis are displayed as measures of effectiveness (MOE). MOEs establish quantitative information about the performance of an intersection. The primary MOEs that are used in the study are delay, level of service (LOS), and queue lengths.

3.1.3 EXISTING CONDITIONS

Existing conditions include operational and queuing analysis of 2018 conditions as represented by the turning movement counts collected in April 2018. Safety analysis includes data from the last full five-year period for which data was available, 2011-2015. The following section includes methodology and results for operational, queuing, and safety analysis.

3.1.4 OPERATIONAL AND QUEUING ANALYSIS

The traffic operations analysis is based on methodologies documented in the Highway Capacity manual (HCM). The HCM contains analysis techniques for evaluating the operations of transportation facilities under various conditions, such as roadway and intersection configuration, intersection traffic control, type of roadway, number and type of lanes, impact due to presence of pedestrians, and many other factors.

→ Delay and Level of Service

Operational analysis results are described in terms of Level of Service (LOS) ranging from "A to F" with "A" operating with the least delay and "F" operating with the most delay. LOS is determined based on methodology from the HCM, which defines LOS based on control delay. Control delay is the wait time experienced by vehicles slowing down for a signal, roundabout, or stop sign plus the stop time and the time for a vehicle to speed up and traverse the intersection control into the traffic stream. The average intersection control delay is a volume weighted average of delay experienced by all motorists entering the intersections on all approaches for a signalized or all-way stop intersection.

Intersection delay and corresponding LOS for signalized and unsignalized all-way stop intersections, as defined by HCM are presented in **Table 3.1**. The LOS delay thresholds for unsignalized intersections are lower than signalized intersections which accounts for the fact that drivers tend to accept longer delays at signals compared to stop or yield signs.

Based on standard practice in the traffic engineering industry, as well as guidance from the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and conformance with MnDOT, the threshold for acceptable level of intersection operations is commonly taken to be the border between LOS D and LOS E. LOS D is considered acceptable and LOS E is considered unacceptable during the peak hour.

Level of Service	Average Delay (seconds/vehicle)							
(LOS)	Signalized Intersection	Unsignalized Intersection						
A	≤ 10	≤ 10						
В	> 10 and ≤ 20	> 10 and ≤ 15						
С	> 20 and ≤ 35	> 15 and ≤ 25						
D	> 35 and ≤ 55	> 25 and ≤ 35						
E	> 55 and ≤ 80	> 35 and ≤ 50						
F	> 80	> 50						

 Table 3.1

 Intersection Control Delay and Level of Service Definitions

← Queuing Analysis

Queuing at intersections can have serious traffic safety implications if expected queues exceed available storage. For example, if projected queuing for a left turning movement exceeds available storage in the turn lane, the queue can extend into the through lane and cause safety concerns with potential rear end crashes. Excessive queuing can also impede business, other private, or public access to and from the road. Finally, queuing analyses can determine whether queues are expected to dissipate during a signal cycle or on stop condition approaches, which can inform on the potential need for additional through lanes or other improvements.

Queuing values were taken from SimTraffic for average queue length and 95th percentile modeled queue length. The following criteria was used to identify "queuing issues" for particularly movements. A queueing issue was identified if any of the three conditions were met at a signalized intersection:

- Condition 1: 95th percentile queue length exceeds storage length and the movements operate at LOS E or LOS F
- Condition 2: Average queue length exceeds storage length
- Condition 3: 95th percentile queue length blocks upstream full access intersection

And at a stop-controlled intersection if the following was met:

• Condition 4: 95th percentile queue length exceeds 500 feet on a stop-controlled approach

3.1.5 CAPACITY ANALYSIS

The following subsections include planning level corridor-wide capacity analysis, intersection operations analysis, and queuing analysis.

Section 2017 Secti

Existing traffic demands were analyzed along 12th Avenue S corridor. **Table 3.2** displays planning level capacity analysis using 2015 Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) volumes obtained from the Fargo-Moorhead Long Range Transportation Plan. The table shows that looking from a planning level only, the corridor is currently well below the planning level thresholds.

	AADT					
Segment	Existing Roadway Type	Section Capacity ¹	Existing 2015	Forecast 2040 ³	Additional Capacity 2015 ²	Additional Capacity 2040 ³
Elm Street to 4th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	3,100	TBD	6,900	TBD
4th Street S to 5th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	3,100	TBD	6,900	TBD
5th Street S to 8th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	5,200	TBD	4,800	TBD
8th Street S to 11th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	7,000	TBD	3,000	TBD
11th Street S to 14th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	5,750	TBD	4,250	TBD
14th Street S to 17th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	4,700	TBD	5,300	TBD
17th Street S to 20th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	3,900	TBD	6,100	TBD
20th Street S to Main Ave SE	Three-Lane	18,000	4,900	TBD	13,100	TBD
Main Ave SE to Ridgeway St	Three-Lane	18,000	4,800	TBD	13,200	TBD

Table 3.22015 AADT and Capacity Analysis

¹ Planning level capacities are highly dependent on assumptions used such as access spacing, peak hour percent, directional distribution, saturation flow rates, etc. Values should not be used for operational analysis or final design.

² Positive numbers indicate that additional capacity is available. Negative numbers indicate over capacity.

³Forecast AADTand capacity analysis is To Be Determined, and will be included in subsequent reports

Existing Intersection Traffic Operations Analysis Results and Conclusions

Table 3.3 displays a summary of AM and PM peak hour intersection delay by approach and by intersection, as well as their respective LOS. The reported approach and intersection delay was taken from SimTraffic and is based on the average of five 60 minute simulation runs. Note that intersection LOS is not defined by the HCM for thru-stop control intersections. This is because the minor approaches with relatively low percentages of overall traffic could experience excessive delay, while the mainline could experience little or no delay. The result likely would be low overall intersection delay, which on its face would indicate acceptable operations, when individual stop-controlled movements could be failing.

All intersections currently operate at LOS C or better during AM and PM Peak. During the PM Peak at 8th Street S the EB movement is operating at a LOS D with a delay of 38 sec/vehicle.

	Intersection	1		AM Pe	PM Peak Hour						
ō			LOS by A	pproach	LOS by In	tersection	LOS by Approach LOS by Intersection				
ŧ	Location	Approach	(Sec/	Veh)	(Sec/	Veh)	(Sec/	Veh)	(Sec/	Veh)	
ပိ			Delay	LOS	Delay	LOS	Delay	LOS	Delay	LOS	
0		NB	3	Α			4	А		NI/A2	
stol	Elm Street	WB	2	Α	2	NI/A2	2	Α	2		
ž		SB	4	Α	2	N/A	4	Α		N/A	
Ч		EB	0	А			0	Α			
VaV-		NB	-	-			-	-			
	1th Street S	WB	7	А	7	٨	3	А	5	۸	
-H	401502205	SB	7	А	ĺ ĺ		6	Α		~	
_		EB	6	Α			6	Α			
~		NB	6	Α			6	Α			
Mai	5th Street S	WB	4	Α	6	Δ	5	А	6	Δ	
-H	Surstreets	SB	-	-	l v		-	-		Ŷ	
		EB	7	Α			7	Α			
g		NB	16	В			25	С			
Signalize	8th Street S	WB	16	В	15	R	24	С	26	C	
		SB	11	В		, D	24	С	20	C	
		EB	21	С			38	D			
>	11th Street S	NB	4	Α	8		4	Α	6		
Ň		WB	9	Α		Δ	8	Α		Δ	
ŧ		SB	7	Α		<u>^</u>	6	Α		~	
		EB	8	Α			5	Α			
>		NB	5	Α			6	Α	_	А	
Ma	14th Street S	WB	7	Α	7	Δ	6	Α	6		
H=		SB	-	-	l í		-	-	Ŭ		
		EB	6	Α			7	Α			
e		NB	4	Α			4	Α	-		
-St	17th Street S	WB	2	А	2	N/A ²	2	Α	2	N/A ²	
r H		SB	6	Α		,	5	A		,	
-		EB	2	Α			2	Α			
e		NB	10	Α	-		10	В	-		
aliz	20th Street S	WB	19	В	13	в	21	С	14	В	
ign		SB	12	В		_	13	В		-	
S		EB	14	В			15	В			
e		NB	16	В			13	В			
aliz	Main	WB	16	В	15	В	15	В	13	В	
ign		SB	11	В		5	10	В		5	
Si			EB	24	С			23	С	1	

 Table 3.3

 2018 AM and PM Level of Service and Intersection Delay¹

¹ Delay for all movements taken from SimTraffic reports. ² LOS is undefined for two-way stop control intersections

Existing Queuing Analysis Results and Conclusions

Synchro uses HCM based equations to determine queues. SimTraffic is a microscopic model that uses observations based on simulation to measure queues. For its robust features, we have used SimTraffic tool for reporting average queue and 95th percentile queue by turning movements for each of the nine key intersections.

Tables 3.4 and 3.5 display a summary of existing storage lengths, average queues lengths, and 95th percentile modeled queue lengths for the AM and PM Peak Hours, respectively. Based on queueing analysis methodology previously identified, no queuing issues were identified along the corridor.

		2018											
Scenario		Existing Condition											
	Appr	St	torage (fi	t) ²	Avera	ige Queu	ie (ft)1	95th	% Queu	e (ft)1			
Intersection		LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT			
	EB	-	225	-	-	0	-	-	0	-			
Elm Street S	WB	-	310	-	-	0	-	-	0	-			
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	690	-	-	6	-	-	26	-			
	SB	-	330	-	-	10	-	-	34	-			
	EB	-	340	-	-	37	-	-	51	-			
4th Street S	WB	-	250	-	-	31	-	-	49	-			
(All-Way Stop)	NB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			
	SB	340	-	340	50	-	29	75	-	49			
	EB	-	250	-	-	37	-	-	57	-			
5th Street S	WB	-	350	-	-	40	-	-	64	-			
(All-Way Stop)	NB	690	-	690	45	-	31	71	-	52			
	SB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			
all the state	EB	130	315	-	24	50	-	56	91	-			
8th Street S	WB	160	390	160	52	56	28	95	105	/0			
(Signalized)	NB	130	/10	/10	40	160	143	107	244	223			
	58	120	670 520	670	10	54	51		130	104			
	EB	-	530	-	-	54	-	-	82	-			
11th Street S	WB	-	340	-	-	49	-	-	/6	-			
(All-way Stop)	NB	645	-	645	22	-	27	47	-	52			
	SB	650	-	650	26	-	50	49	-	80			
	EB	-	545	-	-	42	-	-	65	-			
14th Street S	WB	-	350	-	-	54	-	-	90	-			
(All-Way Stop)	NB	-	645	-	-	34	-	-	55	-			
	SB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			
	EB	-	315	-	-	2	-	-	16	-			
17th Street S	WB	-	240	-	-	2	-	-	19	-			
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	645	-	-	8	-	-	30	-			
	SB	-	1045	-	-	25	-	-	50	-			
	EB	170	300	170	26	41	14	56	82	33			
20th Street S	WB	180	885	-	31	38	-	66	80	-			
(Signalized)	NB	200	645	200	25	77	14	55	140	34			
	SB	220	1450	175	13	89	19	38	154	48			
	EB	130	800	130	11	60	6	34	115	28			
Main Avenue SF	WB	220	220	220	50	49	24	97	99	54			
(Signalized)	NB	180	1250	500	9	97	47	26	153	104			
(SB	240	530	500	42	51	27	86	96	63			

Table 3.4 2018 AM Queuing Summary

¹ Queue for the movements taken from SimTraffic reports (60 min run)

² Thru lane storage is taken as the distance to the prior intersection

Connaria	2018											
Scenario		Existing Condition										
Intersection	Appr	St	torage (fi	t) ²	Avera	ge Queu	ie (ft)¹	95th % Queue (ft) ¹				
Intersection		LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT		
	EB	-	225	-	-	0	-	-	0	-		
Elm Street S	WB	-	310	-	-	0	-	-	0	-		
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	690	-	-	3	-	-	18	-		
	SB	-	330	-	-	10	-	-	34	-		
	EB	-	340	-	-	26	-	-	52	-		
4th Street S	WB	-	250	-	-	21	-	-	44	-		
(All-Way Stop)	NB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
	SB	340	-	340	40	-	19	62	-	47		
	EB	-	250	-	-	42	-	-	70	-		
5th Street S	WB	-	350	-	-	51	-	-	75	-		
(All-Way Stop)	NB	690	-	690	39	-	23	58	-	50		
	SB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Oth Ctro at C	EB	130	315	-	43	126	-	119	253	-		
Sur Street S	WB	160	390	160	104	03	49	164	148	98		
(Signanzed)	INB CD	130	/10	/10	80	108	154	109	264	250		
	5B ED	120	520	070		1/2	157	129	204	250		
Addb Churs at C		-	240	-	-	41	-	-	65	-		
11th Street S	VV B	-	340	-	-	41	-	-	05	-		
(All-way Stop)	NB	645	-	645	24	-	24	49	-	48		
	SB	650	-	650	17	-	37	42	-	59		
	EB	-	545	-	-	38	-	-	57	-		
14th Street S	WB	-	350	-	-	45	-	-	68	-		
(All-Way Stop)	NB	-	645	-	-	31	-	-	52	-		
	SB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
	EB	-	315	-	-	2	-	-	16	-		
17th Street S	WB	-	240	-	-	1	-	-	10	-		
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	645	-	-	14	-	-	39	-		
	SB	-	1045	-	-	15	-	-	42	-		
	EB	170	300	170	29	50	22	65	91	46		
20th Street S	WB	180	885	-	31	50	-	63	103	-		
(Signalized)	NB	200	645	200	27	86	18	54	160	56		
	SB	220	1450	175	12	115	23	41	197	67		
	EB	130	800	130	8	71	11	28	128	43		
Main Avenue SE	WB	220	220	220	33	40	13	70	84	30		
(Signalized)	NB	180	1250	500	7	71	23	20	121	66		
	SB	240	530	500	58	64	45	104	115	87		

Table 3.5 2018 PM Queuing Summary

¹ Queue for the movements taken from SimTraffic reports (60 min run)

 $^{\rm 2}$ Thru lane storage is taken as the distance to the prior intersection

3.1.6 SAFETY ANALYSIS

Crash and traffic volume data were collected and analyzed for intersections along the corridor. Existing average daily traffic volumes were taken from the online MnDOT Traffic Mapping Application. The nine intersections identified and evaluated along the 12th Avenue S corridor include:

- Three traffic signal controls at 8th Street S, 20th Street S and Main Avenue SE
- Four All-Way Stops at 4th Street S, 5th Street S, 11th Street S and 14th Street S
- All other intersections operate as a thru-stop condition with the north-south approaches under stop control

← Crash Severity

Crashes are generally divided into five severity levels. Each severity level is defined below:

- Fatal (F) One or more deaths resulted due to injuries sustained from the crash, either at the scene or within 30 days of the crash.
- Incapacitating injury (A) This is a severe injury that prevents continuation of normal activities such as a broken bone.
- Non-Incapacitating Injury (B) This is an evident injury such as bruising, abrasions or minor lacerations, which do not incapacitate the individual.
- Possible Injury (C) This is an injury that is claimed, reported, or indicated by behavior but without any obvious wound. This includes limping or a simple complaint of pain.
- Property Damage Only (PDO) This is a crash that results in no injuries and only damage to property.

Crash Rate and Severity Rate

Crash rate, expressed as crashes per million entering vehicles at intersections, accounts for exposure and is used as a method to facilitate comparisons to other similar intersections or sections. Severity crash rate applies a weighted average to crashes more severe in nature, i.e. fatal crashes have the highest weighted multiplier. There were no Fatal or 'A' crashes at intersections, therefore severity rate was not calculated.

→ Critical Crash Rate and Severity Rate

Using critical rates to compare against observed crash rates is considered to be one of the most statistically valid methods for identifying hazardous locations. Critical rates account for the type of intersection (traffic control, approach speed, environment), amount of exposure measured in volume traveling through the intersection, and the random nature of crashes. This analysis uses a 99.5% confidence interval in calculating critical crash and severity rates.

← Critical Crash Index

Critical Index is simply the actual rate divided by the critical rate. A critical index in excess of 1.0 indicates that the actual rate is higher than the critical rate, and thus, from a statistical perspective, the location can be considered hazardous for the particular measure of effectiveness under consideration (crash rate and severity rate).

Safety Analysis Results and Conclusions

Crashes from the five-year time period 2011-2015 were queried from the online MnDOT Crash Mapping Analysis Tool. The five-year state average crash rates for different roadway intersections and segments were obtained from MnDOT's 2015 Intersection and Segment Toolkit and are listed in **Table 3.6**. These averages include intersections statewide in Minnesota. The table shows that there are three intersections with a crash rate slightly higher than the statewide average, but none of them above the critical crash rate. Indicating the intersections are operating with a normal and expected range.

12th Avenue S Intersection with	Total Number of Crashes	Crash Types						Observed	Average	Critical	
		PD	С	В	A	К	Daily Entering Volume	Crash Rate (crashes/ MEV)	Crash Rate (crashes/ MEV)	Crash Rate (crashes/ MEV)	Critical Index ¹
Elm Street	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	-	-		-
4th Street S	1	1	0	0	0	0	7,850	0.07	0.35	0.79	0.09
5th Street S	1	1	0	0	0	0	6,500	0.08	0.35	0.84	0.10
8th Street S	34	25	7	2	0	0	24,550	0.76	0.70	1.03	0.74
11th Street S	2	1	1	0	0	0	8,050	0.14	0.35	0.78	0.18
14th Street S	4	4	0	0	0	0	5,675	0.39	0.35	0.87	0.45
17th Street S	1	0	1	0	0	0	5,350	0.10	0.18	0.59	0.17
20th Street S	19	12	6	1	0	0	17,475	0.60	0.52	0.86	0.70
Main Ave SE	10	5	4	1	0	0	14,650	0.37	0.52	0.89	0.42

Table 3.6 Intersection Crash Rates 2011-2015

¹ A Critical Index greater than 1.0 indicates a hazardous location



3.2 Construction History

The available history of construction on the 12th Avenue South corridor is shown in **Table 3.7**.

Year	Type of Work	Specific Location (if applicable)					
River Drive to 9 th Street							
Mid 1950s	Original Grading and Paving						
1988	Full depth asphalt reconstruction	8 th to 9 th St					
1991	Full depth asphalt reconstruction, some curb replacement	4 th to 8 th St					
2006	Rehab – 6" asphalt over 6" agg base	River Dr to 1 st St					
2006	Mill and asphalt overlay	1 st St to 4 th St					
9 th Street to 20 th Street							
Mid 1950s	Original Grading and Paving						
1994	Full depth asphalt reconstruction, some curb replacement (<50%)						
20 th Street to Main Avenue SE							
1964	Original Grading and Paving – 2" asphalt over 8" soil cement base						
1979	Asphalt overlay (2")						
1988	Mill and asphalt overlay (4")						

Table 3.7 – Construction History

3.3 Land Use

Between River Drive and 20th Street, land use is almost entirely low-density residential, with some moderatedensity residential properties located just west of 20th Street. Institutional zoning is also present along the corridor (including Concordia College, Grace United Methodist Church, and the former Thomas Edison Elementary School), with some mixed-use also along the 8th Street north-south corridor.

East of 20th Street, zoning is light and heavy industrial. **Figure 3.2** shows the City's zoning map along 12th Avenue South.





3.4 Geometry

The horizontal alignment is straight on 12th Avenue South, since it is a section line road. The vertical alignment is flat, with the exception of the area just east of 20th Street, where the road grade rises to meet the BNSF RR crossing grade.
3.5 Typical Section

The existing typical street sections found on the 12th Avenue South corridor are shown in **Table 3.8**. All segments have sidewalks/paths on both sides of the street, unless otherwise noted.

Segment	Street Width	Notes
River Drive to 4 th Street	36'	 2-lane with parking No sidewalk on south side between River Drive and Elm Street (1 block) No sidewalk on north side between 2nd Street and 4th Street (2 blocks)
4 th Street to 7 th Street	32'	 2-lane with parking No sidewalk on north side between 4th Street and 6th Street (2 blocks)
7 th Street	46'	 2-lane with parking Bus pullout on north side of street
7 th Street to 8 th Street	42'	 3-lane (2 EB, 1 WB) No parking
8 th Street to 9 th Street	Varies 38' – 56'	4-lane (3 WB, 1 EB)No parking
9 th Street to 15 th Street	36'	 2-lane with parking No sidewalk on south side between 9th Street and 11th Street (2 blocks)
15 th Street to 16 th Street	46'	 2-lane with parking Bus pullout on north side of street
16 th Street to 19 th Street	36'	• 2-lane with parking
19 th Street to 20 th Street	48'	 4-lane (3 EB, 1 WB) No parking
20 th Street to 25 th Street	50'	 3-lane with bike lanes both sides No sidewalk either side No parking
25 th Street to Main Ave SE	56'	 4-lane (3 EB, 1 WB) No sidewalk either side No parking

Table 3.8 Typical Section

Note: Widths are from face of curb to face of curb.

3.6 Pavement Condition

The following sections summarize the existing pavement condition within the 12th Avenue South study corridor. The information provided is based on visual observation and construction history data.

→ River Drive to 9th Street

The existing pavement in this segment is asphalt and is generally in average condition, with some below-average areas present at the 4th Street, 7th Street, 8th Street (US 75), and 9th Street intersections. Some cracking and patching is present, and some potholes have formed near 8th Street and 9th Street. The River Drive to 4th Street segment was last rehabbed and overlaid in 2006, while the 4th Street to 9th Street segment dates to the late 1980s/early 1990s.

→ 9th Street to 20th Street

The existing pavement in this segment is asphalt and dates to the mid-1990s. It is generally in average to below-average condition, with cracking (some large cracks) and patching present.

→ 20th Street to Main Avenue SE

The existing pavement in this segment is asphalt and was last overlaid in the late 1980s. It is generally in average to below-average condition, with an area in particularly rough shape around the BNSF RR tracks just east of 20th Street.

3.7 Right of Way

The existing right of way width, as measured from the centerline of 12th Avenue South, varies throughout the corridor, as shown below in **Table 3.9**.

Right of Way Width									
Segment	North ROW Width (typical)	South ROW Width (typical)							
River Drive to 8 th Street	33'	33'							
8 th Street to 11 th Street	40'	60'							
11 th Street to 17 th Street	40'	40'							
17 th Street to 18 th Street	40'	37.5′							
18 th Street to 20 th Street	37.5′	37.5′							
20 th Street to Main Avenue SE	36′	36'							

Table 3.9

3.8 Access and Parking

There are several different parking conditions and restrictions in place along 12th Avenue South. **Figure 3.3** on the next page shows the areas where parking is allowed or not allowed, and the restrictions (if any) that are in place. The location and type of access points along the corridor are also shown on **Figure 3.3**.



Figure 3.3 | Access and Parking

3.9 Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities

Figure 3.4 shows the existing sidewalk and bike lane facilities along the 12th Avenue South corridor. **Figure 3.5** on the next page shows the existing pedestrian volumes at each intersection for the AM Peak, PM Peak and Daily totals. The signals at the intersections with 8th Street S, 20th Street S and Main Avenue SE accommodate pedestrian crossings in each direction. In addition, throughout the corridor there are either signed or painted crosswalks at the following locations:

- 3rd Street S signed crosswalk
- 4th Street S painted crosswalk
- 5th Street S painted crosswalk
- 6th Street S signed crosswalk
- 7th Street S signed and painted crosswalk









Figure 3.5 | 2018 Pedestrian Volumes

3.10 Lighting

Lighting along the 12th Avenue South corridor is summarized as follows:

- River Drive to 6th Street | Street lights are present on the north side of the roadway at each intersection, attached to utility poles.
- 6th Street to 9th Street | Traveling through the Concordia College campus area, street lighting is present, occasionally on both sides of the street, and smaller sidewalk/path lighting are also present.
- 9th Street to 20th Street | Street lights are present on the north side of the roadway at each intersection, attached to utility poles, with the occasional light in between intersections.
- 20th Street to Main Avenue SE | Street lights are present on the north side of the roadway at periodic spacing, attached to utility poles.

3.11 Drainage/Storm Sewer

The storm sewer facilities within the corridor can be summarized as follows:

- River Drive to 1st Street | runoff is collected and drains west along 12th Avenue South to an outfall to the Red River.
- 2nd Street to 6th Street | runoff is collected and drains west to the alley between 2nd and 3rd Street, where it drains south to 16th Avenue South and then west to an outfall to the Red River.
- 7th Street to 8th Street | runoff is collected and drains west along 12th Avenue South to 7th Street, then south to 14th Avenue South, then west to the alley between 2nd and 3rd Street, where it drains south to 16th Avenue South and then west to an outfall to the Red River.
- 9th Street to 14th Street | runoff is collected and drains north along 10th Street, eventually working its way to the Red River.
- 15th Street to 20th Street | runoff is collected and drains south along 16th Street, then west along 13th Avenue South, then south on 13th Street, then west along 16th Avenue South to an outfall to the Red River.
- 20th Street to Main Avenue SE | runoff is collected and drains south along 25th Street and is discharged through a pumping station into Ditch 47, eventually working its way to the Red River.



Drainage Eventually Works its Way to the Red River

12TH AVENUE S CORRIDOR STUDY | 24

3.12 Utilities

3.12.1 SANITARY SEWER

The City sanitary sewer facilities within the corridor can be summarized as follows:

- River Drive to 8th Street | Sanitary sewer lines run along 12th Avenue South from River Drive to 2nd Street and from 5th Street to 8th Street, in the center of the roadway. Sanitary sewer crossings of 12th Avenue South are present at each intersection. Material is primarily vitrified clay pipe (VCP) with sizes ranging from 8 to 12 inches. A 15 inch PVC pipe crosses at 2nd Street.
- 8th Street to 15th Street | Sanitary sewer lines run along 12th Avenue South from 9th Street to 11th Street on the north side of the roadway, and from 11th Street to 15th Street in the center of the roadway. Sanitary sewer crossings of 12th Avenue South are present at the 10th, 11th, 12th, 14th, and 15th Street intersections. Material is VCP with sizes ranging from 8 to 12 inches.
- → 15th Street to Main Avenue SE | East of 15th Street, there are no sanitary sewer lines that either run along or cross 12th Avenue South.

3.12.2 WATERMAIN

The watermain facilities within the corridor can be summarized as follows:

- River Drive to 8th Street | Water lines run along 12th Avenue South from River Drive to 2nd Street, on the north side of the roadway. Water line crossings of 12th Avenue South are present at each intersection except 7th and 8th Street. Material is a mix of cast iron pipe (CIP) and PVC pipe, with sizes ranging from 6 to 8 inches.
- Sth Street to 15th Street | Water lines run along 12th Avenue South from 8th Street to 20th Street on the north side of the roadway. Water line crossings of 12th Avenue South are present at all intersections. Material is a mix of CIP and PVC pipe, with sizes ranging from 6 to 12 inches. There is a 12 inch asbestos cement pipe (ACP) that crosses at 20th Street.
- 20th Street to Main Avenue SE | A 6 inch CIP water line (20th to 25th Street) and a 12 inch PVC water line (25th Street to Main Avenue SE) run along 12th Avenue South on the south side of the roadway. Lines of various size and type cross at the side streets.

3.12.3 OTHER PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES

Several overhead and underground public and private utilities are present within the corridor, as summarized below. The information provided is based on visual observation and available data.

- Overhead facilities | Moorhead Public Service (MPS) operates overhead power lines that run along the north right of way line through virtually the entire 12th Avenue South corridor, from Elm Street to Main Avenue SE. There are also numerous overhead service line crossings from this main line across to the south side of the roadway.
- Underground facilities | Several types of underground utilities are known to exist within the corridor. Exact location, ownership, and type of these facilities is undetermined. Some of the underground facilities believed to be present include:
 - Electric lines (MPS, BNSF, OTVR, Concordia College)
 - Gas lines (Xcel Energy)
 - Cable and/or fiber optic lines (Midcontinent Communications, Cable One, 702 Communications)

3.13 Railroad Crossings

Two railroad lines cross 12th Avenue South within the study corridor area:

- → BNSF Railway (BNSF)
 - 5-track crossing located just east of 20th Street intersection
 - USDOT Crossing No. 062576Y
- Otter Tail Valley Railroad (OTVR) This crossing is just east of the Main Avenue SE intersection but is within the functional area of the intersection.
 - 1-track crossing located just east of Main Avenue SE intersection
 - USDOT Crossing No. 080725V

Both crossings are signalized and gated. Photos of each crossing can be found below.

There have been no accidents at either of these crossings since 1990, according to the data provided on the Federal Railroad Administration's database.



OTVR RR Crossing east of Main Avenue SE



3.14 Transit

MATBUS operates three routes in Moorhead that travel either along or across the 12th Avenue South corridor. **Figure 3.6** shows the routes and designated bus stops, and also lists February 2018 and April 2018 monthly ridership data for certain stops along the routes, as well as bike loading data for the entire year of 2017.

- Route 1 Crosses 12th Avenue South at the 5th Street and 8th Street intersections.
- Route 2 Crosses 12th Avenue South at the 11th Street and 14th Street intersections.
- Route 3 Travels along 12th Avenue South from 14th Street to Main Avenue SE, and also crosses at 20th Street.





Figure 3.6 | MATBUS Routes and Ridership/Bike Loading Data

3.15 Trees and Landscaping

The Street Tree Review is intended to be used as a resource while planning for improvements during the 12th Ave. South corridor study and help determine proposed corridor improvement impacts on the existing street trees. This review is not a recommendation for street tree removals.

Impacts on existing street trees should be carefully evaluated before recommending removals. The City Forester and community should be an integral part of those discussions. Community "ownership" of existing trees is common and often a very sensitive issue to adjacent property owners and the neighborhood.

The Forestry Department for the City of Moorhead has maintained and nurtured these trees to become an aesthetic, safe, integral and valued part of the existing corridor. Although some trees may be identified as 'not the best tree' for certain locations as we review these trees today, the site conditions, technology, knowledge and practices may not have been the same as when they were installed. For example, the City Forester is tasked with caring for very large trees beneath powerlines and trees with existing/upcoming problematic disease or pest issues. These trees may have originally been selected out of economy or from much more limited availability. Trees were also selected during times when particular diseases and/or pest issues were not in evidence as they are today.

The 12th Avenue South corridor contains existing street trees of the following species:

- American Elm (58)
- Chokecherry (34)
- Crabapple (28)
- Ash (26)
- Amur Chokecherry (9)
- Linden (8)
- Maple (7)
- Hedges (7)
- Coffeetree (3)
- Hawthorn (2)

- Lilac Tree (2)
- Pear (2)
- Apple (1)
- Hackberry (1)

The corridor is dominated by large mature American Elm, Chokecherry, Crabapple, Green Ash, with lesser amounts of Amur Chokecherry, Linden and Maple and others.

The American Elm, Green Ash, Linden and Maple generally appear to be in good condition. Several of these large trees located beneath power lines, appear to be healthy, but have been topped to clear the powerlines. Topping increases the potential for disease by opening wounds, increases the maintenance and impacts the aesthetics.

The Chokecherry, Crabapple and Amur Chokecherry are at or past maturity. These trees are showing evidence of decline and or other health issues. Amur Chokecherry have large trunks, with several trunks/branches that appear to be splitting. Trunk rot is suspected. The Chokecherry are large and appear in generally good shape, but have the fungal disease 'Black Knot' in vary degrees from a few to numerous branches. Maintenance of the fungal disease is by frequent pruning, before the disease has a chance to enter main branches or the trunk. The Chokecherry



trees located beneath power lines, have been topped, which increases the maintenance and impacts the aesthetics.

Physical constraints on the existing street trees that are affecting the overall condition and evaluation of the trees include the width of the boulevard and overhead power lines. There are trees that are of large size with flare roots grown to the curb and are also lifting adjacent sidewalks. Overhead power lines have required the 'topping' of trees to keep branches from interfering with the lines.

 Table 3.10 and Figure 3.7 show a summary of the existing street tree conditions and locations.

The following is a summary of the existing street trees. The summary indicates the street trees as in Condition 1, 2 or 3.

- → Condition 1: Street Trees that appear healthy and are appropriate size/species for the location.
- Condition 2: Street Trees that appear in reasonably good health but may have one or more existing or potential negative issues.
- Condition 3: Street Trees that may be inappropriate for the location based on size/species, have evidence of disease, condition issues or already high-maintenance.

	No. of	Condition			
Species	Trees	1	2	3	Notes
Amorican Elm	59	40	2	15	 Cond. 2 - Trees are lifting sidewalks and/or curbs.
American Lim	50	40	3	13	Cond. 3 - Trees are beneath powerlines and have been topped.
Chokecherry	3/1	0	1	22	 Cond. 2 - Potential for fungal disease.
chokeenerry	54	U	-	55	 Cond. 3- Numerous topping and evident fungal disease.
Crahannle	28	6	5	17	 Cond. 2 - Some die-back, size issues for boulevard.
Clabappie	20	U	5	1/	 Cond. 3 - Significant trunk/branch issues, size issues.
۸sh	26	0	25	1	Cond. 2 - Future potential for Emerald Ash Borer.
ASII	20	U	25	1	• Cond 3. – Tree topped.
Amur	9	0	0	9	• Cond 3 - Trees are past maturity with stem/branch issues
Chokecherry		Ū	Ū		condition incost the past mataney with stein, station issues.
Linden	8	7	0	1	• Cond. 3 - Tree is suckering, which may be sign of health issues.
Maple	7	7	0	0	
Hedges	7	0	7	0	Cond. 2 - Hedges are acting as buffers.
Coffeetree	3	3	0	0	
Hawthorn	2	2	0	0	
Lilac	2	2	0	0	
Pear	2	2	0	0	
Apple	1	0	0	1	Cond. 3 - Inappropriate species for street tree.
Hackberry	1	1	0	0	

Table 3.10 Existing Tree Condition



				HIDA	* Hanson Design Associates, LLC	Drawn by JH	Date 6-8-18	Moorhead 12th Aven
No.	Revision	Date	Ву		Landscape Architecture 2415 3rd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102 phr 701.298.8392	Checked by JH	Scale AS SHOWN	MOORHEAD, MINNES

Figure 3.7 | Existing Tree Locations and Conditions (1 of 2)



Figure 3.7 | Existing Tree Locations and Conditions (2 of 2)

12TH AVENUE S CORRIDOR STUDY | **31**

4.0 FUTURE 2040 NO BUILD CONDITIONS

4.1 Future 2040 No Build Conditions

2040 was chosen as the analysis year so that analysis from this study will be consistent with regional planning. Future 2040 Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) were obtained from the Fargo-Moorhead 2040 Long Range Transportation Plan and can be found in **Table 4.1**. Table 4.1 also displays the planning level capacities and shows that the existing roadway sections today have adequate capacity to handle the 2040 projected volumes. Supporting data for the traffic analysis can be found in **Appendix E**.

2015 and 2040 AADT and Capacity A		AADT					
Segment	Existing Roadway Type	Section Capacity ¹	Existing 2015	Forecast 2040	Additional Capacity 2015 ²	Additional Capacity 2040 ²	
Elm Street to 4th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	3,100	4,700	6,900	5,300	
4th Street S to 5th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	3,100	4,700	6,900	5,300	
5th Street S to 8th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	5,200	4,900	4,800	5,100	
8th Street S to 11th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	7,000	9,700	3,000	300	
11th Street S to 14th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	5,750	9,500	4,250	500	
14th Street S to 17th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	4,700	8,700	5,300	1,300	
17th Street S to 20th Street S	Two-Lane Undivided	10,000	3,900	9,200	6,100	800	
20th Street S to Main Ave SE	Three-Lane	18,000	4,900	9,000	13,100	9,000	
Main Ave SE to Ridgeway St	Three-Lane	18,000	4,800	10,600	13,200	7,400	

Table 4.1

¹ Planning level capacities are highly dependent on assumptions used such as access spacing, peak hour percent, directional distribution, saturation flow rates, etc. Values should not be used for operational analysis or final design.

² Positive numbers indicate that additional capacity is available. Negative numbers indicate over capacity.

Using the 2015 and 2040 AADT volumes from the Fargo-Moorhead Metro COG an annual growth rate was calculated for each section of the corridor and the cross streets. This growth rate was applied to the 2018 existing turning movement counts to determine the future 2040 turning movement counts. **Figure 4.1** on the next page displays the 2040 projected AM and PM turning movement counts and existing lane configuration for the intersections along the corridor.



Figure 4.1 | 2040 Traffic Volumes

4.2 Future 2040 No Build Conditions Operational Analysis

Methodology for operational and queuing analysis was the same as that described in *Technical Memorandum* #1 – *Existing Conditions*. The geometric characteristics for the 2040 No Build models are the same as the 2018 Existing Conditions. Updated, projected 2040 turning movement volumes were input and model optimizations were completed for signal timings.

Table 4.2 displays a summary of 2040 AM and PM peak hour intersection delay by approach and intersection, as well as their respective Level of Service (LOS). The reported delays for approach and intersections were taken from SimTraffic and is based on the average of five 60-minute simulation runs. LOS E is highlighted in yellow and LOS F is highlighted in red. Note that intersection LOS is not defined by the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) for thru-stop control intersections. This is because the minor approaches with relatively low percentages of overall traffic could experience excessive delay, while the mainline could experience little or

no delay. The result likely would be low overall intersection delay, which on its face would indicate acceptable operations, when individual stopcontrolled movements could be failing.

In the **2040 AM peak hour**, all intersections operate with a LOS C or higher.

In the **2040 PM peak hour**, the intersection with 12th Avenue and 8th Street operates at an overall LOS D with the eastbound movements operating at a LOS F. All other intersections operate at a LOS C or higher.

	Intersection	1		AM Pe	ak Hour		PM Peak Hour				
lo.			LOS by A	pproach	LOS by In	tersection	LOS by A	pproach	LOS by Intersection		
ntr	Location	Approach	(Sec/	'Veh)	(Sec/	'Veh)	(Sec/	'Veh)	(Sec/	Veh)	
ပိ			Delay	LOS	Delay	LOS	Delay	LOS	Delay	LOS	
~		NB	4	А			6	А			
ä	Flux Church	WB	2	А		NI / A2	2	А		NI/A2	
ž	Eim Street	SB	5	А		IN/A-	4	Α		N/A-	
۲ ۲		EB	0	А	1		0	А			
٢		NB	-	-			-	-			
Š.	Ath Street S	WB	6	А	_	^	4	Α	_	٨	
All-	4th Street S	SB	7	А	· ·	A	6	А	5	A	
		EB	6	А			6	А			
٢		NB	7	А			7	А			
Way	Eth Street S	WB	4	А	6	۸	5	Α	7	٨	
-IF	Sth Street S	SB	-	-	0	A	-	-		A	
		EB	7	А			9	А			
g	g l	NB	19	В			32	С	42	D	
alize	9th Street S	WB	18	В	17	D	39	D			
ü	ourstreets	SB	12	В	1/	в	31	С		U	
s		EB	20	С			126	F			
Way	11th Street S	NB	5	А		А	5	Α	7	A	
		WB	12	В	10		10	Α			
ŧ	IIIIISUEEUS	SB	9	А			6	Α			
		EB	9	А			7	A A A			
>		NB	6	А			6	Α		A	
Ň	14th Street S	WB	8	А	g	А	8	Α	8		
ŧ	1401 50 220 5	SB	-	-			-	-			
		EB	8	Α			8	Α			
8		NB	8	А			5	Α			
-Şt	17th Street S	WB	2	А	3	N/Δ^2	3	Α	3	N/Δ^2	
립	1,11,01,000	SB	9	Α			6	Α			
F		EB	2	А			3	Α			
g		NB	15	В			16	В			
aliz	20th Street S	WB	25	С	19	В	30	С	22	С	
Ē		SB	19	В		5	22	C	~~~	Ũ	
s		EB	19	В			22	С			
B		NB	24	С			20	В			
aliz	Main	WB	23	С	23	С	21	С	22	С	
E.		SB	17	В		5	20	В		5	
S.		EB	31	С			32	C			

 Table 4.2

 2040 No Build AM and PM Intersection Delay and LOS

¹ Delay for all movements taken from SimTraffic reports.

² LOS is undefined for two-way stop control intersections

4.3 Future 2040 No Build Conditions Queuing Analysis

Tables 4.3 and 4.4 display storage lengths, average queue lengths, and 95th percentile queue lengths for the 2040 AM and PM Peak Hours, respectively. Queue lengths were taken from SimTraffic output. Red shading indicates average or 95th percentile queue lengths that exceed the available storage length.

Based on the queuing analysis methodology identified in Technical Memorandum # 1 where if the following criteria are met then "queuing issues" are identified:

- Condition 1: 95th percentile queue length exceeds storage length and the movements operate at LOS E or LOS F
- Condition 2: Average queue length exceeds storage length
- Condition 3: 95th percentile queue length blocks upstream full access intersection

And at a stop-controlled intersection if the following was met:

• Condition 4: 95th percentile queue length exceeds 500 feet on a stop-controlled approach

Based on the above criteria there are no intersections that experience queuing issues in the **2040 AM Peak** hour.

The following intersections experienced queuing issues in the 2040 PM Peak hour:

• 8th Street S: Eastbound thru lane meets Condition 1 and Condition 2; and Eastbound left lane meets Condition 1.



12th Avenue and 20th Street Intersection

Connain		2040									
Scenario		No Build									
Intersection	Appr	S	torage (f	t)	Avera	ige Queu	ie (ft)¹	95th % Queue (ft) ¹			
Intersection		LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT	
	EB	-	225	-	-	0	-	-	0	-	
Elm Street S	WB	-	310	-	-	0	-	-	0	-	
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	690	-	-	4	-	-	22	-	
	SB	-	330	-	-	10	-	-	34	-	
	EB	-	340	-	-	29	-	-	52	-	
4th Street S	WB	-	250	-	-	37	-	-	62	-	
(All-Way Stop)	NB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
	SB	340	-	340	55	-	31	80	-	50	
	EB	-	250	-	-	44	-	-	73	-	
Sth Street S	WB	-	350	-	-	42	-	-	70	-	
(All-way Stop)	NB	690	-	690	53	-	38	/8	-	65	
	SB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
9th Street C	EB	130	315	160	23	33 76	-	28	104	-	
(Signalized)	ND	120	390	710	50	70	45	115	133	32	
(Signanzeu)		120	670	670	20	215	50	56	146	112	
	FR	- 120	530		- 20	62	-		97		
11th Street S	WB	-	340	-	_	72	_	_	114		
(All-Way Stop)	ND	645	340	645	29	12	22	52	114	50	
(All-Way Stop)		650	-	650	25	-	52	35	-	100	
	50	050	-	050	27	50	04	45	-	100	
		-	343	-	-	32	-	-	100	-	
14th Street S	VVB	-	350	-	-	72	-	-	109	-	
(All-way Stop)	NB	-	645	-	-	37	-	-	56	-	
	SB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
	EB	-	315	-	-	8	-	-	36	-	
17th Street S	WB	-	240	-	-	5	-	-	26	-	
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	645	-	-	8	-	-	30	-	
	SB	-	1045	-	-	28	-	-	54	-	
	EB	170	300	170	51	91	28	108	169	80	
20th Street S	WB	180	885	-	59	86	-	114	158	-	
(Signalized)	NB	200	645	200	35	119	18	69	207	54	
	SB	220	1450	175	22	155	30	96	250	92	
	EB	130	800	130	21	120	21	71	217	90	
Main Avenue SE	WB	220	220	220	111	120	62	200	223	140	
(Signalized)	NB	180	1250	500	15	155	102	48	232	199	
	SB	240	530	500	67	84	52	121	147	108	

Table 4.3 2040 No Build AM Queuing Summary

¹ Queue for the movements taken from SimTraffic reports (60 min run)

Connerie		2040										
scenario		No Build										
Intersection	Appr	S	torage (f	t)	Avera	ge Queu	e (ft)1	95th %	6 Queu	≘ (ft)¹		
intersection		LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT	LT	TH	RT		
	EB	-	225	-	-	0	-	-	0	-		
Elm Street S	WB	-	310	-	-	0	-	-	0	-		
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	690	-	-	2	-	-	14	-		
	SB	-	330	-	-	10	-	-	33	-		
	EB	-	340	-	-	28	-	-	50	-		
4th Street S	WB	-	250	-	-	26	-	-	48	-		
(All-Way Stop)	NB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
	SB	340	-	340	49	-	22	74	-	46		
	EB	-	250	-	-	59	-	-	104	-		
Stn Street S	WB	-	350	-	-	56	-	-	86	-		
(All-way Stop)	NB	690	-	690	46	-	30	70	-	57		
	58	- 120	- 215	-	-	210	-	176	740	-		
8th Street S		160	200	160	150	105	- 62	212	/45	122		
(Signalized)	NR	120	710	710	119	241	226	129	272	252		
(Signanzed)	SR	120	670	670	69	241	198	155	375	303		
	FB		530	-	-	54	-	-	87	-		
11th Street S	WB	-	340	-	-	50	-	-	74	-		
(All-Way Stop)	NR	645	540	645	29	50	28	52		51		
(All Huly stop)	CD CD	650	_	650	25		42	46		60		
	50	050	5/15	000	21	46	43	40	71	00		
1 Ath Chroat C		-	250	_	_	40 62	_	-	06	-		
14th Street S		-	530	-	-	05	-	-	50	-		
(All-Way Stop)		-	045	-	-	33	-	-	51	-		
	SB	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
	EB	-	315	-	-	5	-	-	20	-		
17th Street S	WB	-	240	-	-		-	-	38	-		
(Thru-Stop)	NB	-	645	-	-	11	-	-	36	-		
	SB	-	1045	-	-	17	-	-	44	-		
	EB	170	300	170	55	117	54	109	221	134		
20th Street S	WB	180	885	-	63	101	-	122	188	-		
(Signalized)	NB	200	645	200	39	144	24	98	256	89		
	SB	220	1450	175	16	193	48	44	330	146		
	EB	130	800	130	19	148	38	71	250	125		
Main Avenue SE	WB	220	220	220	56	93	26	110	158	62		
(Signalized)	NB	180	1250	500	7	119	65	24	183	142		
	SB	240	530	500	132	126	104	233	274	220		

Table 4.4 2040 No Build PM Queuing Summary

¹ Queue for the movements taken from SimTraffic reports (60 min run)

4.4 Traffic Operations Conclusion

The 12th Avenue S corridor will be below planning level capacity thresholds for the Existing and Future No-Build conditions but will experience traffic operational failures for the eastbound movements at 8th Street S due to increased traffic volume and delay that will be generated by the year 2040.



12th Avenue S and 8th Street Intersection





5.0 ISSUE IDENTIFICATION AND NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Technical Memorandum #3 included the identification of issues along the 12th Avenue South corridor, and the development and analysis of a range of alternatives that address those issues. The Study Review Committee (SRC) participated in the development, review, evaluation, and refinement of these concepts throughout the study. Comments and input from the public were also considered during the process. The existing conditions and future no-build conditions were documented in Technical Memorandums 1 and 2.

Because the corridor is characterized by three unique segments 1) River Drive South to 8th Street South, 2) 8th Street South to 20th Street South, 3) 20th Street South to Main Avenue Southeast, most improvement alternatives have been grouped by segment. Each improvement is listed based on the primary need or issue being addressed, estimated cost, and impacts. The improvements which apply generally to the entire corridor are listed separately at the end under "corridor-wide improvements"

The following issues have been identified along the corridor based on factors including stakeholder input, public input, existing conditions, and the 2040 projected traffic volumes. The study review committee met on several occasions to discuss the existing conditions, public input received, and streetscaping. Public input was gathered through an open-house format meeting that included a formal presentation, as well as an online survey.

5.1 Traffic Operations and Roadway Geometrics

Of the nine intersections evaluated along the corridor, all provided an acceptable Level of Service (LOS) of D or above in the existing and future condition analysis except the 8th Street South intersection. Here, the eastbound traffic experienced queuing issues and operated at a LOS F in the future 2040 PM Peak hour.

The intersections at 11th Street South and 20th Street South could be improved to provide more desirable geometric features including horizontal or vertical alignment adjustments. At the intersection of 12th Avenue South and 11th Street South, 12th Avenue is offset 10 feet horizontally across the intersection. Moorhead City Code 11-5-7 prohibits intersection jogs with centerline jogs of less than 150 feet. There are several streets intersecting 12th Avenue South with a centerline jog, though the impacts of realigning those streets would be significant.



11th Street South Intersection, Facing East

At the 20th Street South intersection, there is a 3 foot vertical profile change between the intersection and the BNSF Railroad tracks 60 feet to the east. This vertical grade change combined with steep cross slopes can cause buses and other large vehicles stopped at the railroad tracks to lose traction and slide off the roadway in winter conditions.

The BNSF Railroad crossing east of 20th Street South should also be considered for quiet zone improvements. This location was evaluated in the City's previous *Quite Zone Study*. Future improvements should be reflective of the recommendations of that study, accounting for any changes in current conditions.



20th Street South Intersection, Facing North

5.2 Pedestrian and Bicycle Mobility

Providing a safe and connected system for pedestrians and bicycle users was a clear concern from the respondents to the online survey for public input. Nearly all respondents agreed that a continuous sidewalk on both sides of the roadway, or a continuous shared use path on one side of the roadway would be an enhancement to the corridor. Over half of the respondents also noted the need for an improved crossing at the BNSF Railroad tracks east of 20th Street South.

Most of the sidewalk curb ramps throughout the corridor do not meet current ADA design guidelines. There are also curb ramps that could be moved to improve crossing locations, and some that could be removed as there is no connecting ramp on the other side of the roadway.

Many Sidewalk Curb Ramps Do Not Meet Current ADA Guidelines or Do Not Align



A theme of the 2014 *Moorhead River Corridor Master Plan* is to support enhanced recreational opportunities for the Red River corridor through enhanced connectivity to the river. This need was further supported through public input gathered in the 2016 *FM Metropolitan Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan* with two of the most common comments received relating to "better connectivity" and "more bike lanes". As a result, the study team prioritized a short-term project for bike facilities on 12th Avenue South between the Red River and 20th street.

5.3 Transit Facilities

The current MATBUS stop locations were evaluated for improvements. MATBUS considers shelters for locations meeting a variety of criteria including open areas, available parking, surrounding amenities, commercial/educational/government/medical facility areas, high density, low income, and high ridership areas. The stop at 19 ½ Street South has the highest ridership but is near private property and not a good candidate for a shelter. Many public input comments were received regarding the stop at 25th Street South. Although there is not currently high enough ridership to warrant a shelter at this location, other enhancements can provide better access and mobility at the stop.



MATBUS Riders Boarding Near 25th Street

5.4 Parking and Access Management

Current Moorhead City Code 11-5-7 states the desired number of full access points for a Minor Arterial is 4 per mile with up to 8 per mile under conditional situations, and up to 16 per mile within the urban core at the discretion of the City Engineer. There are 106 access points within the two-mile corridor study area of 12th Avenue South, many of them being a private driveway or garage access. The consolidation or elimination of access points reduces the number of conflict points between motor vehicles, pedestrians, and bicycles. While it is not realistic to expect significant changes to private driveway access points, parking lot access and bus parking areas within the corridor can be improved.

The 2012 Moorhead Neighborhood Parking Study indicated that most areas east of 8th Street South have less than 25% on-street parking utilization. Over 20% of the respondents to the online public input survey said

that less on-street parking would improve the safety of the corridor, while only one percent desired more parking.

5.5 Streetscaping and Trees

The City of Moorhead has been working to incorporate arts and culture into community development and improvement projects. While artwork may not be appropriate for all areas, consideration should be given to areas of opportunity including both new development and redevelopment of existing neighborhoods. Artwork can be part of a successful formula to transform areas considered industrial or blighted.

5.5.1 STREETSCAPING AND ART

In 2016, CenturyLink commissioned seven works of art through the CenturyLink Moorhead Box Art Project contest that invited creatives to submit original works of art with a technology theme to be selected to wrap a CenturyLink utility box. There are 3 CenturyLink Box Art locations on 12th Avenue South. Additional locations should be encouraged whenever opportunities arise. Traffic signal cabinets and other City owned equipment should be considered and would be supported by the City of Moorhead.

The 2015 Sidewalk Art and Poetry Project selected two poems, "Sugar Beet Baby" and "Dreams are Precious", to stamp into the sidewalk at two locations within the study corridor. This should be considered for incorporation with improvement work on the corridor.

And Sata S.

The industrial area from 20th Street South to Main Avenue Southeast is a good opportunity to incorporate landscape enhancements. An enhanced pedestrian, bicycle, and landscape linkage would create a safer and more aesthetic access. Public comments reinforce this concept as this section of the corridor could become a much-improved connection to residential areas east of Main Avenue Southeast.

5.5.2 CONCORDIA COLLEGE

The Concordia College Campus is a significant portion of the 12th Avenue Corridor Study area. Roadway improvements are an opportunity to enhance the campus visibility and pedestrian circulation across 12th Avenue South. This can be accomplished by incorporating campus site elements into the design of the corridor such as colored/stamped concrete sidewalks or crosswalks, light poles, monuments and signage, plantings, and artwork.

The 2010 Concordia College Campus Master Plan by EYP/Architecture Engineering P.C. includes features to enhance the visitor's progression through campus and heighten the sense of campus aesthetics, and to ensure consistent visual imagery of Concordia College. Improvements identified along the 12th Avenue South corridor include:

- Primary Pedestrian Gateway Crossing at the intersection of 8th Street South
- Pedestrian Gateway & Crossway at 6th Street South and 7th Street South

Sidewalk Poem Stamp

- Campus Identification at 5th Street South and 11th Street South
- Vehicular Gateway to parking lots between 8th Street South and 9th Street South
- Landscape Improvement from 5th Street South to 11th Street South



Figure 5.1 | Concordia Master Plan at 12th Avenue South and 8th Street South

5.5. TREES

There is a very old willow tree that is a community landmark on the Concordia grounds located outside the right-of-way on the south side of 12th Avenue South just west of 11th Street South. The tree was likely planted sometime in the early 1950's.



The very large, multi-trunk tree is very popular in the community because of its unusual form, size and age. The trunks are very large diameter and are laying in a nearly horizontal configuration that makes for a unique and interesting form. The tree is visited often, is popular for photography, and is frequently climbed on.

The tree is in a lawn area, with a low levee located directly to the southwest of the tree. There are soccer fields located further southwest. The tree was pruned in 2017 to remove dead wood.

The "Crazy Tree" is a Local Landmark

There were several large trunks removed on the southwest side that were impacted from the installation of the levee in the early 2000's. The tree is probably in decline and additional impact to the surrounding area around the tree will likely speed up the decline. Further development in the area surrounding the tree should be minimized to preserve the tree. Foot traffic from visitors, as it currently occurs, creates a certain amount of soil compaction, which can be detrimental to the tree. Activity from equipment, changes to grades, and increases in visitation from pedestrians will further compact the soil surrounding the tree. Since the tree has always existed in lawn, the lawn should remain.

Concordia has expressed an interest in having a path or sidewalk that can be utilized by their equipment between 9th Street South and 11th Street South. The area on top of the levee would be a preferred location since this area has already been disturbed. If a path must be located within the right-of-way and continuous along 12th Avenue South, it should be located as far away from the tree as possible.

The City Forester indicated a preference to keeping all existing viable trees along the corridor. Results from the public input survey showed that over half of survey respondents noted that existing boulevard trees should be preserved, while many also agreed that new streetscape improvements such as landscaping, lighting, or special paving/artwork would enhance the corridor. Representatives from Concordia College expressed a preference for replacing all chokecherry trees along campus if possible.

A final issue that impacts not only trees, but also several other areas of need, is the presence of overhead power lines owned by Moorhead Public Service in the north boulevard along over 80% of the corridor. Existing trees require continual trimming to prevent limbs from damaging the lines. The location of the poles in the boulevard also limits the feasibility of any significant improvements or changes to the north side of 12th Avenue.



Overhead Power Lines are Strung through Mature Trees Along the 12th Avenue South Corridor
6.0 ALTERNATIVE DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION

Based on the 2040 projected traffic volumes, the existing lane configurations of the 12th Avenue South corridor meet the planning-level capacity requirements. As such, the future build alternatives assume that the existing lane configurations will be maintained, and the improvement alternatives developed for this study focus more on improving the specific issue/need areas addressed within each segment. The costs presented are planning level construction estimates and do not include engineering fees, right of way purchase, extensive utility relocations, or other unknown design details. Detailed cost estimates can be found in **Appendix F**.

6.1 River Drive South to 8th Street South

Table 6.1 Segment 1: River Drive South to 8 th Street South							
Improvement Alternative	Issue/Need Addressed	Estimated Cost	Impacts	SRC Recommendation			
1A1: Install shared lane markings (Sharrows)	Bike Route Connectivity	\$7,500	Low: Pavement markings	Not Preferred			
1A2: Replace existing south sidewalk with an 8' shared- use path from 5 th St to 8 th St and install Sharrows from River Dr to 5 th St <i>Figure 6.1</i>	Bike Route Connectivity	\$90,000	Medium: Right of way; 2 driveways; up to 16 existing trees	Preferred – Short Range			
1B: Install 5' sidewalk on north side between 2 nd St and 6 th St <i>Figure 6.1</i>	Pedestrian Route Connectivity	\$110,000	High: Right of way, 8 driveways; up to 17 existing trees; overhead power lines and other private utilities	Not Preferred			
1C: Close parking lot access points near 5 th St and 8 th St, and shift parking area near 7 th St <i>Figure 6.1</i>	Parking and Access Management	\$50,000	Medium: Reduced parking lot access/ increased access congestion; existing trees; private utilities	Preferred – Short Range			
1D: Install curb bump-outs at 6 th St and 7 th St intersections <i>Figure 6.1</i>	Parking and Access Management	\$75,000	Medium: Reduced parking; pavement, curb, and sidewalk reconstruction	Preferred – Short Range			
1E1: Reassign eastbound lanes at 8 th St intersection with a shared left/thru and a designated right by shifting curb <i>Figure 6.1</i>	Traffic Operations	\$185,000	Medium: Traffic signal revisions, signal controller/cabinet; pavement, curb, and sidewalk reconstruction; drainage	Preferred – Short Range			
1E2: Widen 12 th Ave to install designated eastbound right turn lane at 8 th St. <i>Figure 6.2</i>	Traffic Operations	Dependent on Skyway Pier impacts	High: The widening would impact a pier for the Concordia Skyway. This pier would need to be relocated and the skyway may need to be redesigned. Impacts to the pier could be limited by installing a 50' turn lane with 30' taper.	Not Preferred			



Figure 6.1 | River Drive to 8th Street



Figure 6.2 | 8th Street Intersection

6.2 8th Street South to 20th Street South

Table 6.2 Segment 2: 8 th Street South to 20 th Street South							
Improvement Alternative	Issue/Need Addressed	Estimated Cost	Impacts	SRC Recommendation			
2A: Install 8' shared-use path on south side from 9 th St to 11 th St, staying south of the "Crazy Tree" <i>Figure 6.3</i>	Bike Route Connectivity	\$100,000	Low: Right of way; Concordia College property	Preferred – Short Range			
2B1: Install shared lane markings (Sharrows)	Bike Route Connectivity	\$10,000	Low: Pavement markings	Not Preferred			
2B2: Add 6' designated on- street bike lanes on each side of 12 th Ave <i>Figure 6.3 & 6.4</i>	Bike Route Connectivity	\$30,000	Medium: Pavement markings; signs; elimination of parking along 12 th Ave could place additional stress on side-street parking	Preferred – Short Range			
2B3: Replace existing south sidewalk with an 8' shared- use path from 11 th St to 20 th St <i>Figure 6.3 & 6.4</i>	Bike Route Connectivity	\$305,000	High: Right of way, 20 driveways; up to 49 existing trees; private utilities	Not Preferred			
2C: Install crosswalk at 19½ St Figure 6.4	Pedestrian Route Connectivity	\$5,000	Low: Pavement markings	Preferred – Short Range			
2D: Remove parking area on south side near 9 th St realign approach into campus lots, remove driveway to parking lot <i>Figure 6.3</i>	Access Management	\$45,000	Low: Temporary access restrictions	Preferred – Short Range			
2E: Realign 11 th St intersection to improve horizontal alignment <i>Figure 6.3</i>	Roadway Geometrics	\$150,000	High: Right of way; driveways; pavement; drainage; curb; existing trees; private utilities; drainage	Preferred – Short Range			
2F: Construct grade raise of 20 th St intersection to improve vertical profile with BNSF RR Tracks <i>Figure 6.4</i>	Roadway Geometrics	\$1,250,000	High: Right of way; apartment driveway and parking lot; drainage; traffic signals; pavement; curb; sidewalks; existing trees; private utilities	Preferred – Long Range			



Figure 6.3 | 8th Street to 13th Street



Figure 6.4 | 14th Street to 20th Street

Table 6.3 Segment 3: 20 th Street South to Main Avenue SE						
Improvement Alternative	SRC Recommendation					
3A: Construct pedestrian/bicycle crossing on east side of 20 th Street South at BNSF Railroad tracks <i>Figure 6.5</i>	Bike and Pedestrian Route Connectivity	\$200,000	High: Right of way/ private property; railroad crossing; drainage; private utilities	Preferred – Short Range		
3B: Add new 10' shared-use path on south side (remove existing on-street bike lanes, shift south curb line 10' north to accommodate off- street path) <i>Figure 6.5</i>	Bike Route Connectivity	\$250,000	Medium: Right of way/private property; existing trees; drainage	Preferred – Short Range		
3C: Install curb ramp and concrete waiting area at 25 th Street South bus stop <i>Figure 6.5</i>	Transit Facilities	\$5,000	Low	Preferred – Short Range		
3D: Shift private business driveway east of the BNSF Railroad tracks <i>Figure 6.5</i>	Parking and Access Management	\$15,000	Low	Preferred – Short Range		

6.3 20th Street South to Main Avenue Southeast

Railroad Crossing at 20th Street



12TH AVENUE S CORRIDOR STUDY | 52



Figure 6.5 | BNSF RR Crossing to Main Avenue SE

Table 6.4 Corridor-Wide Improvements							
Improvement Alternative	Issue/Need Addressed	Cost	Impacts	Recommendation			
4A: Upgrade existing sidewalks & paths to current ADA standards	Bike and Pedestrian Route Connectivity	\$200,000	Medium: Curb & gutter; drainage; up to 99 curb ramps	Preferred – Short Range			
4B: Review and enforce parking policies, paint curb to restrict parking near accesses	Parking and Access Management	\$15,000	Low: Changes in parking policy may cause confusion; additional parking on side-streets	Policy Changes – Not Preferred; Curb Painting – Preferred Short Range			
4C: Streetscaping improvements Figure 6.6 & 6.7	Trees and Streetscaping	*See Below	Low: Improvements can be incorporated with roadway improvements	Preferred – Short & Long Range			
4D: Bury overhead electric lines <i>Figure 6.6 & 6.7</i>	Trees and Streetscaping	\$1,350,000	High: Right of way; driveways; existing trees; sidewalks	Supported -Long Range			

6.4 Corridor-Wide Improvements

*Typical Streetscape Improvement Costs

- 1 1/2" Cal. Deciduous Tree = \$400/ea
- #5 Deciduous Shrub = \$65/ea
- #2 Deciduous Shrub = \$45/ea
- #1 Perennial = \$25/ea
- Wood Mulch with Weed Barrier Fabric = \$125/cy
- Rock Mulch with Weed Barrier Fabric = \$175/cy
- Rock Mulch Special with Weed Barrier Fabric = \$225/cy
- Precast Concrete 'Bullet' Edging = \$8/If
- Steel Bench = \$1,600/ea
- Bike Rack = \$800/ea
- Colored Concrete with Medium Broom Finish = \$10/sf
- Colored with Stamped Concrete Finish = \$20/sf
- 6' bench on a concrete pad =\$2,000
- Accent Planting bed (24'x6') = \$3,000
 - o Includes 2 ornamental trees, 12 shrubs, 24 perennials, rock mulch, and precast concrete edging
- Accent Planting Bed (24'x6') with Bench = \$5,00



Figure 6.6 | Corridor-Wide Landscaping/Streetscaping



Figure 6.7 | Corridor-Wide Landscaping/Streetscaping

12TH AVENUE S CORRIDOR STUDY | 56

7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

7.1 Scope of Environmental Impact Analysis

This corridor study did not include an in-depth evaluation of the environmental impacts or coordination with potentially affected agencies typically involved in implementing transportation projects. The following information is presented for discussion and as a reference for identification of potential future environmental impacts.

7.2 Natural Resources

7.2.1 LAND USE AND RIGHT OF WAY

As documented in the "Existing Conditions" portion of the study, the land use throughout the corridor is a mix of low to moderate density residential, mixed-use, institutional, and light and heavy industrial zoning. It is not anticipated that any of the proposed alternatives would significantly impact the existing land use so this aspect was not analyzed further.

The existing right of way varies throughout the corridor. The proposed improvement alternatives are generally designed to stay within the existing right of way, although alternatives that include removing and replacing the existing sidewalk with a wider shared-use path, or installing a new path where one does not exist, may require temporary construction easements or purchase of permanent easements or right of way. These areas include:

- South side of 12th Avenue S from 5th Street S to 8th Street S
- 20th Street S to Main Avenue SE.

The properties in these areas will need to be further evaluated if these alternatives are implemented.

7.2.2 WETLANDS AND WILDLIFE

According to the US Fish and Wildlife Wetlands Mapper application, there are no wetlands within the corridor study area. The nearest bodies of water include the Red River which is approximately 750 feet west of the study area and a county drain approximately 1000' east of the study area. It is not anticipated that any of the proposed alternatives would significantly impact those water bodies or other potentially unknown wetlands.

7.2.3 TREES

There are many existing boulevard trees throughout the corridor study area, most notably from River Drive to 20th Street SE. These trees are discussed more in-depth in the "Existing Conditions" and "Issue Identification and Needs Assessment" sections of this study. The majority of these trees are mature American Elm, Chokecherry, Crabapple, and



Green Ash. Overall there are 70 trees in good condition, 41 trees in fair condition, and 77 in poor condition. Many of the trees in poor condition are Crabapple trees near Concordia College campus that are past maturity and showing evidence of health decline or other health issues. Concordia has indicated that they would like to replace these trees.

The "Crazy Tree" is a local landmark located in the southwest corner of 12th Avenue South and 11th Street. Because of the historical and social nature of this tree, the alternatives were developed for that area focused on reducing or eliminating impacts to the tree.

Some of the improvement alternatives include removing and replacing existing sidewalks in the boulevard with a wider shared-use path. These improvements to the bicycle and pedestrian facilities would have negative impacts to the existing boulevard trees either traumatizing the root structure or requiring the tree to be removed completely. While this could be an opportunity to replace large overgrown trees with a more appropriately sized tree for a boulevard environment, the City Forester indicated a desire to keep all existing trees. The trees also have sentimental value to the public, especially the residents along the corridor and removal would likely not be favorable.

7.3 Utility Impacts

The major private utilities identified in the "Existing Conditions" analysis include overhead power lines owned by Moorhead Public Service (MPS) and several underground utilities. The exact location and ownership of the underground utilities is unknown and further analysis would be required on any alternatives chosen that would potentially impact these utilities.

The overhead power lines owned by MPS extend through 80% of the corridor. The City expressed a desire to bury these lines for aesthetic and maintenance concerns. MPS was contacted to discuss the possibility of burying these lines and they indicated that these lines serve a large population along the corridor and burying them would take a significant effort. The impacts of such an undertaking would include temporary service disruptions, localized earthwork, and traffic impacts. MPS estimated a cost of \$1,350,000 to bury the power lines throughout the corridor.

7.4 Section 4(f)

Section 4(f) of the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) Act of 1966 prohibits federal transportation agencies from using land from publicly owned parks, recreation areas (including recreational trails), wildlife and water fowl refuges, or public and private historic properties, unless there is no feasible and prudent alternative to that use and the action includes all possible planning to minimize harm to the property resulting from such a use.

Potential Section 4(f) properties include:

- Parks and recreation areas
- Wildlife or waterfowl refuges and wildlife management areas
- Cultural and archeological resources and sites
- Historic sites, bridges, and highways
- Landscapes
- School playgrounds

- Fairgrounds
- Public multiple-use land holdings
- Wild and scenic rivers
- Planned facilities
- Bikeways (recreational) and trails
- Public golf courses

There are properties along the corridor that would likely be protected under Section 4(f). City parks including Alm Park, Lamb Park, and Romkey Park are not directly adjacent to 12th Avenue South but are within one city block. Concordia College has recreational facilities directly south of 12th Avenue South east of 8th Street.

The 2014 Moorhead River Corridor Master Plan provides a vision for developing recreational and habitat enhancement to the area along the Red River. The Plan included potential future projects that may be within the area of future improvements on 12th Avenue South.

This study did not include an analysis of possible historical, archeological, or cultural resources.

7.5 Section 6(f)

The purpose of Section 6(f) of the Land and Water Conservation Act (LAWCON) is to develop and provide accessibility to outdoor recreation resources. It prohibits use of any land purchased with LAWCON funds for any purpose other than recreational use unless replacement land with equal usefulness is provided.

A search of the listing of park lands purchased with LAWCON funds indicates that there are currently no Section 6(f) protected lands within the corridor study area.

7.6 Environmental Justice and Social Considerations

In accordance with Executive Order 12898 "Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations", environmental justice must be addressed to the greatest extent practicable and permitted by law in all federal planning and programming activities. The intent of the order is to promote nondiscrimination in federal programs that affect human health and the environment, as well as provide minority and low-income populations access to public information and public participation. Future projects along the corridor could have federal funding and may be considered a federal project required to comply with this order.

A review of 2010 census data shows a high concentration of low-income and minority households along certain areas of the 12th Avenue South corridor, particularly between 17th Street and 20th Street. It is not expected that the proposed improvements would negatively impact a particular area of the corridor more than another, however there will need to be further analysis with any future project.



8.0 STUDY RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 Summary of Recommendations

Based on input and analysis of the Study Review Committee, along with public and stakeholder input, the following improvement alternatives are recommended for future implementation. Most of the recommendations are expected to be implemented with projects scheduled for 2020 and 2021. Some improvements are indicated as "long-range" as they will require a longer project development process and/or additional funding. Further environmental documentation or study may be required depending on the funding sources used by the City of Moorhead for future projects.

The following is a summary of the preferred recommendations for the corridor.

8.1.1 BICYCLE, PEDESTRIAN, AND TRANSIT ROUTE IMPROVEMENTS

- Install shared-lane markings "sharrows" from River Drive to 5th Street
- Install a shared-use path on the south side of 12th Avenue S from 5th Street S to 8th Street S and from 9th Street S to 11th Street S.
- Shift south curb to the north between 20th Street S and Main Avenue SE to create a boulevard wide enough to install a shared-use path along the south side
- Install on-street dedicated bike lanes on the north and south side of 12th Avenue S between 11th Street S and 19 ½ Street S.
- Install a crosswalk at 19 ½ Street south
- Install a curb ramp and waiting area at the MATBUS stop west of 25th Street S
- Install pedestrian/bicycle crossing on east side of 20th Street South at BNSF Railroad tracks
- Improve curb ramps throughout the corridor to meet current ADA guidelines

8.1.2 PARKING AND ACCESS MANAGEMENT

- Close parking lot driveways
 - North side of 12th Avenue S directly east of 5th Street S
 - South side of 12th Avenue S directly west of 8th Street S
 - North side of 12th Avenue S directly east of 8th Street S
 - \circ ~ South side of 12 th Avenue S directly west of 23 rd Street S ~
 - South side of 12th Avenue S directly east of 23rd Street S
 - \circ South side of 12th Avenue S directly west of 25th Street S
- Shift parking-area on north side of 12th Avenue S near 7th Street S farther west, away from the intersection
- Remove parking area on south side of 12th Avenue S directly east of 9th Street S
- Shift parking lot driveway on south side of 12th Avenue S directly east of the BNSF Railroad tracks farther to the east, away from the railroad tracks
- Install curb bump-outs around the southeast and southwest corners of the 6th Street S and 7th Street S intersections
- Paint curb near access points to deter parking in the access line of sight

8.1.3 ROADWAY GEOMETRICS AND TRAFFIC OPERATIONS

- Reassign eastbound lanes at 8th Street S intersection with a shared thru/left turn lane and a designated right turn lane
- Realign 11th Street S intersection to eliminate horizontal offset and align the curb lines
- Construct a grade raise at the 20th Street S intersection by adjusting the cross-slope on the east half of the intersection to improve the vertical profile of 12th Avenue S at the BNSF Railroad tracks (*this is supported as a long-range improvement*)

8.1.4 STREETSCAPING AND TREES

- Incorporate improvements throughout the corridor as roadway improvements are implemented
- Bury overhead power lines (this is supported as a long-range improvement)

8.2 Estimated Cost for Recommended Improvement Alternatives

The cost estimates do not include the base cost for the planned mill and overlay from River Drive to 20th Street S, or the planned pavement rehabilation from 20th Street S to Main Avenue SE. All costs are in 2019 dollars.

12th Avenue South Long-Range Improvement Estimated Costs River Drive to Main Avenue SE						
Alternative	Estimated Cost					
2F - 20th St Intersection Grade Raise	\$1,250,000.00					
4D - Bury Overhead Power Lines	\$1,350,000.00					
Long Range Total	\$2,600,000.00					

Table 8.1	
Long-Range Improvement Alternative Estimated Cos	sts

Table 8.2
Short-Range Improvement Alternative Estimated Costs

12th Avenue South Short-Range Improvement Estimated Costs River Drive to Main Avenue SE	
Alternative	Estimated Cost
Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Transit Improvements	
1A2 - Sharrows and Shared-Use Path from River Dr to 8th	\$90,000.00
2A - Shared-Use Path from 9th to 11th	\$100,000.00
2B2 - On-Street Bike Lanes from 11th to 19 1/2	\$30,000.00
2C - Crosswalk at 19 1/2	\$5 <i>,</i> 000.00
3A - RR PED Crossing East of 20th	\$200,000.00
3B - 10' Shared Use Path from 20th to Main Ave SE	\$250 <i>,</i> 000.00
3C - Bus Stop Ramp at 25th St	\$5,000.00
4A - Corridor-Wide Sidewalk ADA Upgrades	\$200,000.00
Subtotal	\$880,000.00
Parking and Access Management	
1C - Access and Parking Area Removal & Realignment from 5th to 8th	\$50,000.00
1D - Curb Bump Outs at 6th and 7th	\$75,000.00
2D - Access and Parking Area Removal & Realignment from 8th to 10th	\$45,000.00
3D - Access Removal and Relocation from 20th to 25th	\$15,000.00
4B - Corridor-Wide Curb Painting to Restrict Parking	\$15,000.00
Subtotal	\$200,000.00
Roadway Geometrics and Traffic Operations	
1E1 - 8th St Intersection Lane Reconfiguration	\$185,000.00
2E - Realign 11th St Intersection	\$150,000.00
Subtotal	\$335,000.00
Streetscaping Improvements	
4C - Corridor-Wide Streetscaping Improvements	Varies
Short Range Total	\$1,415,000.00

METROCOG Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments



Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.232.3242 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

To: TTC Members
From: Cindy Gray, Executive Director
Date: May 3, 2019
Re: Prepare for 2020 Budget and Consider Project Needs List and Prioritization

Metro COG recently received information about NDDOT's plans to carry out traffic counts in eastern North Dakota that have resulted in us reconsidering one of our 2020 UPWP projects. Our current UPWP includes a 2020 Traffic Counting project, estimated at \$125,000. NDDOT plans to count eastern North Dakota in 2021. Since the DOT's counts significantly reduce the number of counts that need to be taken in the Metro COG contract, we have reviewed our entire 2024 MTP process to ensure that moving the traffic counts to 2021 would work from an MTP schedule perspective (Attachment 1). We have determined that this would actually be advantageous, as scheduling the counts for 2021 would also allow us to plan for data purchases the same year as the counts (origin/destination data and job/household data).

Shifting the traffic count project to 2021 will free up \$100,000 in Federal funds in our 2020 budget. Depending on the type of project selected for use of these funds, this change could affect local match amounts. The Traffic Count project is metro-wide, so the \$25,000 (20%) local share affects all jurisdictions at amounts ranging from approximately \$300 to \$12,500. If a substituted project involves fewer jurisdictions, the local share(s) would increase accordingly. Budget flexibility (i.e. a larger budget project) may be possible, but could affect the local share, because more than 20 percent may need to consist of local funds.

Another option would be to add funds to projects already underway if it appears any projects would benefit from scope adjustments.

Attachment 2 shows is an <u>unranked</u> list of studies and plans that have been suggested as needed or beneficial to the metro area in the coming years. The projects are listed in the order we received them, either internally at Metro COG or from others, and do not reflect any kind of a prioritization. Metro COG is requesting that the TTC consider these, or potentially other projects and recommend a project substitution for 2020.

Requested Action: Recommend to the Policy Board a project substitution to take the place of the traffic count program in 2020.

								A	genda Item 9,
				2024 MTP Process	S				
				Year					
2020	2020 2021					2023		2024	
Action	~ Cost	Action	~ Cost	Action	~ Cost	Action	~ Cost	Action	~ Cost
Move Traffic Counts to									
2021 to coincide with									
NDDOT Counting of				Demographic		January, 2023 - Begin		MTP Completion and	
Eastern ND	(\$125,000)	Traffic Counts	\$125,000	Forecast Update	\$50,000	MTP Update Process	\$250,000	Adoption	\$150,000
				TAZ Boundaries (COG					
		Freight Counts	\$5,000	staff)	\$0	TDM Model Scenarios	\$100,000		
				Job/HH Assignments					
		HH and Job Data Purchase	\$20,000	to TAZs (COG staff)	\$0				
				Travel Demand					
				Model - Base Year					
		Origin/Destination Data		and Existing +					
		Purchase	\$25,000	Committed Network	\$100,000				
		Revise/Update UZA (COG							
		staff)	\$0						
Yearly Total	-\$125,000		\$175,000		\$150,000		\$350,000		\$150,000

Total MTP Update Cost

\$700,000/

Agenda Item 9, Attachment 2

#	Suggested Year	Project Name	Location	Description	Jurisdictions	Probable Cost Range	Relevant Planning Factors	Suggested By:
1	2020	Clay County Heartland Trail Alignment Analysis	Buffalo River State Park to Hawley	The Clay Co Heartland Trail Task for has been working on planning of the Heartland Trail since 2014. With a planned trail alignment already proposed, the next step is to conduct in-depth analysis of the planned alignment in order to (a) determine any obstacles associated with the alignment, (b) determine efforts to overcome the obstacles, and (c) determine easements needed to construct the trail. This study would analyze the trail between Buffalo River State Park and Hawley, approximately 9 miles.	Clay County, Hawley	\$100,000 to \$200,000	A, E, J	Metro COG
2	2021	Veterans Blvd Corridor Study	South of 52nd Avenue S.	The purpose of this study would be to take a more detailed look at the transportation needs along the Veterans Blvd section line as it estends south of 52nd Avenue S and into Fargo's future growth area. Some of the unique challenges along this corridor include a drain crosing, future regional stormwater pond, and potential joint jurisdiction with Horace south of 64th Avenue S. We anticipate development pressures in this area in the not too distant future, and this may be an area that warrants some additional attention at some point.	City of Fargo, City of Horace, Cass County	\$150,000 - \$200,000	A, D, E, G	Fargo Planning Department
3	2022	Interstate Operations Study (Update to 2011)	I-94 and I-29 throughout Metro Area	Study and provide detailed recommendations for short-term and long-term improvement needs (capacity, system management, etc.) on the Interstate system. Potentially could include some TSMO strategies. MNDOT has expressed concern for I-94 lane configuration through Moorhead. 2028-2029 Reconstruction in Minnesota.	NDDOT, MnDOT, Fargo, Moorhead, West Fargo	\$250,000 - \$300,000	A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, I	HDR (MTP Consultant), MNDOT
4	2021	. Regional Traffic Signal System Master Plan	Metro Area	Description needed.	All	Cost range needed.	B, D, E, G	HDR (MTP Consultant)
5	2022	TDM Review Study	Metro Area	Thorough technical review of the TDM	Metro COG	Cost range needed.	F, G, I (all factors to some extent)	HDR (MTP Consultant)
6	2021	Red River Greenway Study	Fargo	Drawing upon the results of the Bike Gap Study, and based on significant ped/bike input as part of the MTP, study and plan wayfinding, public improvements along the river including extensions of the existing trail, improved connectivity both within the greenway and to nearby neighborhoods and attractions, access to open space, and connectedness to nature and potential sites for human restoration and recreation.	Fargo	\$200, 0 00	A, E, F, J	Metro COG (based on Fargo's request in 2018)
7	2021	Origin Destination Data	Metro Area	Gather origin destination data for the metro area using StreetLight or AirSage data.	Metro COG	Cost range needed.	F, G, I (all factors to some extent)	Metro COG
8	2021	Traffic Calming Alternatives Study	Moorhead - 4th Street and 5th Street from Main Avenue to 22nd Avenue S	The purpose of this study would be to review traffic calming alternatives along 4th Street S and 5th Street S in Moorhead. The roadways currently have a varied cross section width, which encourages faster vehicular speeds on the northerly blocks just south of Main Avenue. Alternatives would look at pedestrian mobility, safety, reducing the need for enforcement,safety improvements, and bicycle accommodations, and potential for transit improvements. Citizens have already met during a meeting organized by walkability advocates to discuss these roadways and potential future configurations.	Moorhead	\$125,000	B, E, F, G, H, I	Metro COG

	9 2023	US-81 Corridor Study (University Drive & 10th Street)	Fargo	Study and provide detailed recommendations for short-, mid-, and long-term improvement needs (capacity, system management, etc.) primarily on the one-way pair system. Could include feasible network design alternatives.	Fargo	Cost range needed.	A, B, C, D, E, F, G, [I(?)]	Metro COG
1	0 2021	Vehicular Bridge Crossing Feasibility Study	Metro Area	Building on work completed approximately 20 years ago, conduct a feasibility study of additional vehicular bridge crossings between 100th Ave S (Fargo) to 76th Ave N/Cass Co 22 to determine regional priorities, impacts, current opportunities and constraints, and planning level cost estimates associated with various crossing alignments in developed and currently undeveloped areas. A study of this nature should also look at regional connectivity to existing or planned corridors.	Fargo, Moorhead, Cass and Clay Counties	Cost range needed.	A, B, C, D, E, F, G, J	Metro COG
1	1 2021	Electric Vehicle Readiness Study	Metro Area	Outline steps the region can take to support and encourage electric vehicle adoption	Metro COG	Cost range needed.	A, D, E, F, G, I, J	Metro COG
1	2 2022 or 2023	I-94 / Sheyenne Diversion Overpass Study	West Fargo / Cass County	The purpose of this study would be to study the costs, benefits, impacts, implementation, and other attributes associated with an overpass that would span I-94 and the Sheyenne Diversion just west of West Fargo. Per the 13th Avenue Corridor Study, this overpass would be located in the vicinity of 13th Ave W and CR 28 (15th St NW). This study could also look at roadway connectivity and a future roadway network on the southwest side of I-94/Sheyenne Diversion.	West Fargo, Cass County, NDDOT	\$75,000 - \$200,000	A, B, D, E, F, G, J	HDR, West Fargo
1	3 2021	Rails to Trails Study - Moorhead to Kragnes	Moorhead to Kragnes	The rail line from north Moorhead to Kragnes is abandoned. This presents an opportunity for a rails-to-trails project. This study would looks at the costs, feasibilty, and coordination necessary for a potential trail between Moorhead and Kragnes utilizing the abandon rail alignment.	Moorhead, Clay County	\$100,000 - \$200,000	A, B, D, E, F, J	Moorhead
1	4 2021	25th Street S Corridor Study	32nd Ave S to 58th Ave S	25th St S from 32nd Ave S to 58th Ave S - The health of the asphalt section will need major work in the near future and peak hour capacity issues are occurring.	City of Fargo	\$150,000 - 200,000	A, D, E, G	Fargo Engineering
1	5 2021	TH 10	34th St through Dilworth	Planning Study in preparation for reconstruct in 2027.	Dilworth, MNDOT	\$200,000	A, D, E, G	MNDOT
1	6 2023	East Dilworth / Moorhead N/S Arterial Corridor	l-94 to Clay Co Rd. 83	Planning Study to review alignment for north/south corridor between Highway 336 and 14th Street. Includes need and feasibility of RR grade separation and I-94 connection.	Dilworth, Moorhead, Clay Co, MNDOT	\$200,000	A, B, D, E, F, G	Metro COG

Planning Factors

- A support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency;
- B increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and nonmotorized users;
- c increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and nonmotorized users;
- D increase the accessibility and mobility of people and for freight;
- E protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality of life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local planned growth and economic development patterns;
- F enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between modes, for people and freight;
- G promote efficient system management and operation;
- H emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system;
- I improve the resiliency and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate stormwater impacts of surface transportation; and
- J enhance travel and tourism.

METROCOG Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments Agenda Item 10

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.532.5100 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

To: Transportation Technical Committee (TTC)
From: Michael Maddox, AICP
Date: May 3, 2019
Re: 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Contract Extension

In 2018, Metro COG contracted with HDR for the completion of the 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP). The initial schedule indicated substantial project completion in May 2019. However, there have been unforeseen delays over the course of the last year which are now impacting the delivery of the final plan.

Metro COG's 2045 MTP is due to NDDOT and FHWA in July 2019. Metro COG is requesting NDDOT grant an extension so that HDR can finish the plan. Staff thinks this extension is necessary in order to ensure proper public engagement is conducted, especially in regards to citizens weighing in on the regional transportation prioritization.

HDR has proposed extending the MTP delivery date by three (3) months. Staff is asking that the contract with HDR be amended to include the new extended project delivery schedule.

Requested Action: Recommend approval of the updated schedule and to amend the contract to reflect new timetable for completion to the Policy Board.

Foundations of Dynamic Traffic Assignment (DTA)

May 14 (8 AM – 4:30 PM) and May 15 (8 AM to Noon), 2019 Training Room, 3rd Floor (south entrance), Fargo City Hall, 225 4th Street N, Fargo, ND

"Foundations of Dynamic Traffic Assignment (DTA)" is a FHWA-sponsored workshop providing participants with a solid grounding in the fundamentals of conducting traffic analyses using DTA techniques, knowledge on the appropriate use of DTA, and an understanding of both strengths and weaknesses inherent in DTA analyses.

The workshop is a one and half-day format featuring lecture discussion of different topics. The workshop is intended to provide participants with the background to make informed decisions regarding the value and challenges of DTA analyses using a broad range of simulation tools. The workshop does not provide training on the application of a particular tool; nor does the workshop promote the use of any specific tool, FHWA-developed or otherwise.



U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Highway Administration
Foundations of DTA Workshop Agenda

Hosted by Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments

<u>Day One – Tuesday, May 14</u>

- 8:00 9:15 Introduction and Overview
- *9:15 10:30* **DTA Concepts**
- 10:30 10:45 Break
- 10:45 12:00 **DTA Project Scoping**
- 12:00 1:00 Lunch Break
- 1:00 2:00 Data Collection and Utilization
- 2:00 3:15 DTA Model Development and Error Checking
- 3:15 3:30 Break
- 3:30 4:30 Model Calibration and Validation

<u>Day Two – Wednesday, May 15</u>

- 8:00 9:00 Model Calibration and Validation (cont)
- 9:00 9:15 Break
- 9:15 11:30 Alternative Analysis
- 11:30 12:00 **Question / Wrap up**

Location

• The workshop will be held in the training room of the new Fargo City Hall at 225 4th Street N in Fargo. The training room is on the 3rd floor near the south entrance.

Parking

- Parking is available south of City Hall off of 3rd Street N (east of the public library). **Lunch**
 - Numerous lunch options are available within walking distance.

Closest Hotel

• Radisson Hotel Fargo (701-232-7363) at 201 Fifth Street N is approximately 1.5 blocks from Fargo City Hall.



U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Highway Administration